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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The trustees are pleased to present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report
of the charitable company for the year 1. September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the
purposes of both a trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates as a Church of England Academy for pupils aged 11 to 18 serving a predominantly rural -
community, just north of Lincoln. The academy has a pupil capacity of 1,500 students aged 11-18 (300 students
in the sixth form). It had a roll of 1,435 in the last school census.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution _ L -

The academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the academy.

The trustees of William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law.

The charitable company is known as William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School.

Details of trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in the
Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

c. Trustees' indemnities

The academy has opted into the Department for Education (DfE)'s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000.

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

Details of the trustees who served throughout the year, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Administrative details on pages 1-2.

The number of trustees is not less than three nor more than twenty three. The members may appoint up to 5
trustees. Other categories of trustees include foundation trustees appointed by the ex-officio foundation trustee,
staff trustees elected by the staff, parent trustees elected by parents and co-opted trustees appointed by the
trustees. The Headteacher is an ex-officio trustee as well as the incumbent or his/her nominee. Trustees serve
for a four year term. The trustees appointed by the members and co-opted trustees appointments are based on
a skills audit of the trustees to ensure that the trustees bring a rich skills profile to benefit the academy and its
students. ‘
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of trustees

The Academy Trust is keen for all its trustees to receive training. This can range from induction training for new
trustees, to training for specific responsibilities (e.g. exclusions, performance management, safeguarding) and
new initiatives. Trustees are also encouraged to attend national and local conferences, and access local
networking opportunities. : ‘

During the year, the Board received training on Ofsted and the new inspection framework, and safeguarding.
Other training undertaken included: governor roles and responsibilities; understanding school structures and
what children should learn; health and safety; admissions; handling delicate situations; exclusions; and
governance of a Church School. '

Governors attended the local authority's governor partnership meetings, diocesan governor networking meetings
and the Lincolnshire governor conference, ‘Governance for the future: Lincolnshire and beyond’. The Clerk
attended the NGA's national Clerks' conference and local Clerks’ networking meetings.

A number of webinars were accessed on the implications for governance during the pandemic: Board dynamics,
relationships and trust in a challenging time; Governing Boards as employers — what does Covid-19 mean for
you; the role of Governing Bodies in the safe reopening of schools; running Governing Body and Board meetings
effectively in schools and trusts during Covid-19; preparing for the reopening of schools; planning for the autumn
term. What do Boards need to know? '

An induction checklist provides new trustees with a range of information, training and support in their role as
trustees. The Chair of Trustees gives trustees a tour around the academy and introduces them to the
Headteacher and senior staff.

The Board of Trustees is a member of the National Governors’ Association as a gold member, conferring such
benefits as legal advice for trustees, conferences, advice and information. Online training can also be accessed
through this organisation.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

The organisational structure consists of three levels: the members, the trustees and the Senior Leadership Team
(SLT).

The Academy Trust is managed by the trustees who may exercise all its powers. The trustees may delegate to
any trustee, committee, the Headteacher or any other holder of an executive office, such of their powers or
functions they consider should be exercised by them. Any action or decision taken with respect to the exercise
of that power or function must be reported back to the next trustees’ meeting. A scheme of delegation and terms
of reference are approved annually.

The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual development plan and budget,
monitoring the academy by the use of budgets and making major decisions about the direction of the academy,
and senior staff appointments.

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and has delegated a number of responsibilities to its committees, which
are reported to and discussed at Board of Trustees’ meetings. The Governing Body simplified its committee
structure to an Ethos and Relationship Committee, Resources Committee and Quality of Education Committee.
Standing Committees included the Admissions Committee, Complaints Committee, Governor Support
Committee, Pay Committee, Pupil Discipline Committee, Staff Discipline Committee and Headteacher Pay and
Performance Review Committee.

During the financial year, the SLT consisted of the Headteacher who is the Accounting Officer, two Acting Deputy
Headteachers, two Assistant Headteachers, three Associate Assistant Headteachers and a School Business
Leader. The Interim Headteacher was appointed as on 7 February 2020 after a rigorous two-day .selection
process. The temporary SLT structure was carried over to the academic year 2020-2021 because of Covid-19.
These managers control the academy at an executive level, being responsible for the day to day management of
the academy, acting out the strategic decisions taken by the trustees, ensuring an annual development plan is
set out, monitored and carried out successfully.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel is set at the point of recruitment in line with the Academy
Trust's Pay Policy. Key management personnel are appointed at a pay point on national statutory pay scales and
this is subject to review as part of the annual appraisal cycle. Performance against objectives are reviewed by
the Pay Committee for Deputy and Assistant Headteachers in July. The Headteacher Performance Management
Committee of three governors meets early in the academic year with the School Improvement Adviser to review
the Headteacher's performance against targets. Interim meetings to review progress are held during the year.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Structure, governance and management (continued)

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

~ Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year
Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time

0%

1%-50%

51%-99%
100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time

Total pay bill

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time
hours :

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

" The principal object of the Trust is contained in Article 4 of its Articles of Association:

Number of
employees

2,199
127,689
1.7222

3.1800

%

%

The Academy Trust's object (“the Object”) is specifically restricted to the following: to advance for the public
benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by
establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school with a designated Church of England
religious character offering a broad and balanced curriculum (“the Academy”) conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to arranging
for religious education and daily acts of worship (as required by the Funding Agreement) and in having regard to

the advice of the Diocesan Board of Education.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

School Development Plan 2019 - 2020

School Development Plan (SOP) 2019-2022

(Detailed plans are available for the areas identified from respective members of SLV)

whole Schoo! Stialegic Prioritfes:

To defiver 6n exceptional dimate for tearning for the whole schoo! community. To énsuré that évery child mattérs and achieves thelr full academic
potentiol To ensure the school Is effectively led through e pevied of transition.
NB. Equality Objeetives feloted to the sehool eontext are shown as required by the Public Secter Equality Duty.

tarpets baiap rashistic, but aspirational

Areas for Development Action Required Due Date M:::::::s | success critesia (what successvill look
{from Schood Objectives) cqut like to show impact)
Review
Implement LBeracy Strategic Plam with & foguiz on
reading, writing and speaking tov promate votabulary, | Jul-21 J-20 Achievement/prograss towerds tergets set
fluency, confidence, enjoyment and understanding in Literacy Plan. Staff evaluations from
To improve student 1NSET day and twilight CPD highlight impad
) ) and naxt staps In developing literacy skilis
ottitudes to fzorning to-
creote more Independ, In the chassreom. Sampled StaH
o .e e pan _‘m' Development Management targets and
resilient lcarners ready for success ¢riteria provide a sharp focus on
next steos b cusing on ) N b -4 IQVIGQ & 2 1oCuy L2
p;u:::y e Whole school INSEY am? ?D f?:m on ;u:igomne staff 20 2an-20 improving students’ [itesacy skills. Close
toimprove studeats’ literacy skills the gender gap between boys and gidsto -
0.1 (predicted 2019/20), Dirfference
betvreen boys and girls P8 2018/19 = -0.48)
Astertain effective existing literary practices and 120 18020
create opportunities for sharing these whole schoo!
Implement Sinth Form Strategic Plan o2t 20 Athlevemn.t/pfwo‘gma towerds targets set
in Sixth Form plan.
To improve siudent Improve L3VA for Year 13 to -0.1¢
cttitudes ta fearning to {predictad 2019/20), Year 13 LIVA S -0.25
creote more indepentdent, . in 2019). Sampled Staff Development
resilient learners recdy for Management targets and success ariterla
rext steps by focusing on Key st X stretcihand chali g cal provide & sharp focus on improving Shah
v by i ’
sizth form provision ey ‘r: ;ee(;e:;? :; aln s,: ae;"ﬁ; m; ﬁaﬁ:g'ﬂ nl 20 Feb-20 Fora teaching and learning.
fescarchend be oe'm“ ‘c;d‘ : a‘r with stall through) - ul- bt Slith Form lesson observations evidence
professionglidevelopment high-quality Sixth Farmiteaching:
Target setting strategy reviewed with the:alm of Dec-39 Nev-18
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

Implement Literacy Strategic Plan with a focus on

reading, variting and spaaking to promote vocabutary, |  Jul-22 Jul-20
flueney, confidence, enjoyment and understanding Progress 8 of SEN K students has improved
from-0.3 (predicted 2018/20) to 0.1 {will
show sustained progress over 1ast 4 years).
To improve student Close the gender gap between boys and
outcomes for SENK i girls to -0.1 {predicted 2019/20). Difference
students betveaen boys and girls PS 2018/19 =-

0.48). lanuary Inset day to provide CPD on
tan-20 Jon-20  lsupporting SEND students, especially those
with low literacy

Whole school INSET and CPD focus on supporting SEN
studsnts in the classroom

Further improve access {0 the Curriculum for students

working significantly balow age-retsted leaming Jul-20 Apr20

Clarity of baheviou! expectations In lessons
ceinforced throush SLT presence, pupli code of Ongeing Jan-20
conduct, sscemblies, beiefings and staff training

Promps start fo lessons with students ready
for learning. Staff report deaner school
environment. Reduced number of student
isolations for Pupil Premium (22% in
2018/19) and SEND {18% in 2018/19),

New dining room sittings to improve canteen Oct-19 Sep-19 Reduced number of incldents. of swesring:

To rédticé hcidents of environfent. {61 In 2018/19), deflance (113in 2086/19)
lowlevel disriiption from and physical (86 in ?“"8"9’-

students " | Reduted number of fixed term exclusions

- — E— S— ~ e — for Free Sthool dMealfPupll Premium
students belows 4,296 (201819, nat avarage
=4.3%) and SEND below 13% (2018/29 nat
average = 8.5%). Close the gender gap
betviesn boys and girls to 0.1 (predicted
Dec-19 Nov-19 | 2019/20), Diifference betvreen boyz and
girls P2 2018/19 = .0.48).

Reviews system of reintegration of students following
exduslon

Develop a rewards system based on school values Apr20 Feb-20

Page 8



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

fotus on attendance of Free School Meals students by
Education Welfare Officer {EWO), Heads of Year and o
Deputy Headteacher. Termlyupdates presentedto | Jul-20 | sen20 | Yoo 11 studeats with very low attendance
Senior Leadiership Team and Governing Body Ethos {<90%){2¢ studeats @ July 2039 whea In
Committee (Year 10} to Improve Progress 8 10 betier
than-0.3 (predicted 201S/20).
Minutes of SLT and Goveming Body
meetings highlight progress mede in
To improve very kow student |Purther Improve persistent absence {PA) through early Improving attendance. improved
attendance and punctuality |- identification, EWO-home visits/eontact after day 3. sttefidance of Free School hieal stiudents
to school Usic of School Attendance Pancls, Education Jul-20 1an-20 bo.ubove 93.7% (2018/19) to cloze thg sap
Supervision Orders and Parenting Qrders. with wholo ichéol attendonca (2016/29 =
9% 62:). Nat average for all school
attendance in 2018/19 = 94.5%. Persistent
— S Absence to be reduced belovw 8.3%
Improve punctuality to sehool by reinforeing (2018/19) (Nat average 2018/19 =
expectations with both students, staff ond parents, 13.9%). Punctuzlity to school te be
weekly reporting of students late to school to Head of | Jul-20 12n-20 measurad termly and addressad
Year and consistent application of sanciions for
lateness
Complete a new Self-Evaluation Form {SEF) based on
audit of provision to inform School Development Plan{ Now-19 Oct-19
{$0P) underplnned by Strategic Priorities
SEF and SDP written and reviewed
through out the academic year. QA
Tealning For 8l statf, especially Middle Lepdars, Class processes in place to help middle leaders
To be Ofsted fieady’ Teathers, SET and Governors on preparing for Ofsted | Nowv-19 Oct-19 understand the new lﬁspeetion framevrork
: inspection and be prepared for inspection, Training
for all staff, induding middle leaders on key
components of new framework
embed Curricklum Intent: and Implementation
statements for school and departments. Prepare for | Now19 Oct-19
Ofsted call and ‘Deep Dives.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

Staff meetings to share and review strategic priorities

K Jan-1!
and school’s direction Jut-20 fan19
S S N Stafi survey to highlight good
To improve communicotion staff to oomplete g_iectmnlc surveyto guaug feadback B communicetion and support from s_oh_ool.
on communicetion and understanding of school Now-12 Oct-i9 Staff evalustions of Sept 2019 nset day
with staff so that they hove ' ‘ ;
. priorities shovr stafi understand strategic plan and
a better understanding of .
their roles, Sampled Teather Development
how thelr roles sugport the ‘
school’s strategle direetion Management tergets and Support Staff
Ensiiré a cohesive cycle betiwveen School Prioritias, Appraisal forms.
tinzet, CPO, Development Management, Quality
Assurance ond Lesson Observations. Revisitcpp | D262° | Nov19
peogramme.
Ensure allbudgei stakeholders are awere of the I::::e’::l:ge:: :;ﬁ?i;’;:‘:;::?:::;isz:
dated fi licy and Delegation of Authori Dec- w19 |7 T ST
updated flaznce po w(ooz?e egation of Autherity | Dec-29 Nov-1 the need to spend prudentiy and vithin
their allocated budget
Revlew and update Serilce Level Agreement (SLA) Updated dotumentation showing
tontract veorkbook to énsure all contracts are jan-20 Oec18 prioritised contracts to rengw and
documented, induding renewal dates renegotiate
) In rensival priofity order, rensgotiste all contidets in [ Budget savings spainat predicted spend
Toobialn uc!ugf °r mONY | line with the policy to azree new contrarts and terms | Oagoing pAB1-20 and improved conteact terms from prior
when clfocoting finoncial which aref best value ‘ year
résouvees
Frameviorks found, which ve can ulilise
Revievs new ESFA/Gov frameswvork opportunities and and achieve budgetfcost savings agalnst
consortium options to ascertain any WFS ¢an exploit | Dec-29 Now-19 predicted spend. Consoniums joined
to achieve better value for money wheve eppropriate, delivering procurement
benefits
Improved revenue from site lattings in line
Increase lettings in line with the S-yearrecovery plan | Jul-20 feb-20 with orabovethe budgeted tncome
statement
Audit school pmvis:;r; l::l:as;aﬁ wellbelng and Now-i9 Oct-18 Summary c;m; t::;r;:: msd;:: provision
To widen the school’s ) .
influence on the provision of - PTS -
mentel health by exténding | Staff to complete electronic survey an weil-being and Nowr19 Oct-19 suwg;:wRZ?:;:gf;ia;‘:::‘:?ued
he work eurrently worklond. Resmilts shared vAth staff ‘ uee v -
well-baing
undertaken (clso 0 SIAMS
targes) ) . _
Address aclion points from audit and survey NMar-20 Feb-20 Survey staff a?aln “‘_““’""’5"7 ing T-erm to
evalusta furtherimpact of provition
Continue to work with Browwne Jacohson solldtors to Feb-20 Hec-19
rench a settiemeant
Deivise progiamme of works with contractorss and
Vo restore boitom fizld to environmental team for necessary surveys and repeir | Nar<20 fan-20
ek 12l : 2 g
use this ocodemic yeor ok Flald in operationdl use by Spring 2021
Praject worls and management Aug-20 Apr-20
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

Improve and increase communication with 1ak20 Mar-20 Parents, staff and community have greater
stakeholders awareness of Governirg Sody
Yo furrtherimprove the
effectiveness of the
Governing Body
- 1 Improve governor visibility in school w20 | Mar-20 Increase in governor visits to school

c. Public benefit

In setting the objectives and planning its activities, the trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity
Commission’s general guidance on public benefit. The key public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision
of a high quality of education to its students and community cohesion.

d. Strategies

The Academy Trust's main strategy is encompassed in its vision statement, which is reviewed annually:

William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School's vision is to provide all members of the school
community with the opportunities to engage with ‘life in all its fullness’ (John 10:10) through the highest quality of
education, encouragement and endeavour. We are committed to striving for excellence and ensuring that all
students are known, valued and can achieve.

Its core values are: Compassion, Friendship, Respect, Perseverance, Responsibility, Wisdom.
e. Summary of impact of COVID-19

Reopening for Year 10 and 12 students

The DfE announced on 24 May 2020 that secondary schools should partially reopen to Year 10 and 12 students,
week commencing 15 June 2020. They stated that no more than a quarter of students should be on site at any
time, with no more than 15 students in a class, and that any school provision must support and not replace
existing remote learning.

Preparation included:
. An academy risk assessment, which was approved by the Health and Safety Consultant, unions and staff

(teachers and support). This is now on the academy website
http://www.williamfarr.lincs.sch.uk/resource.aspx?id=565722;

. A teacher and support staff expectations document;

. A student expectations document;

. Student and staff timetables, including a staff duty rota;

. Surveying parents to determine the likelihood of students attending;

. Site preparations, health and safety checks and a cleaning schedule;

. Staff training on use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE);

. A risk assessment for students with Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and those with
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

behavioural issues;

. Communication with parents, staff and governors as the Government announced changes;
. Asking Year 10 and 12 students to complete a wellbeing survey before they returned to the academy to
identify any worries/anxieties and anyone who would like to talk to a member of staff.

Year “Numberof | Main worries - Least worries . Number of students
group student NB. students could tick up. .| NB. students could tick up | requesting a ' '
o replies to 6 categoriés ’ to6 categories .7, |support )
| (% of year ' ; - conversation with
. roup)’ X : staff
Year 10 | 189 (79%) ®  64% {119 students) e 16% (30 students) | 7
Being behind with Reconnecting with
work . teachers and staff
* 34% (62 students) e 13% (24 students)
Health risk in Reconnecting with
lessons friends
®  25% (46 students) e 8% (14 students)
Health risk in social Getting to/ffrom
time the academy
safely
JYear | Numberof ‘| Main worries R Least worries - | Number of students
: gmup S student | NB. §tudents could tick up | NB. Students could tick up ' réquesting a
| replies to 6 categories ', to 6 categories support
- | (%.of year, . o S ‘conversation with *
‘group) . ) : A - staff.
Year 12 | 76 (70%) *  73% (56 students) e 25% (19 students) | 6
Being behind with Reconnecting with
work teachers and staff
e 38% (29 students} e 19% (15 students)
Health risks in Reconnecting with
social time friends
* 30% {23 students) o 6% (5 students)
Health risks in Getting to/from
lessons the academy
safely

The results were similar between Year 10 and 12 with students most worried about school work and safety. This
survey was very useful in directing care and guidance support and speaking to the students who requested a
conversation with staff.

On Monday 15 June 2020, William Farr partially reopened to Year 10 and 12 with students attending 1 day per
week. Year 12 attended an A Level lesson in each of their subjects led by a subject specialist. In addition,
students attended an Extended Project Qualification lesson and a session with their form tutor for care and
guidance support. Year 10 students attended a lesson in the core subjects of Maths, English and Science and
option subjects (once per fortnight). They also had a session with their form tutor for care and guidance support.
During the first week of reopening (15-19 June 202), Year 10 and 12 student attendance in the academy was
very good and in line with the parent survey, which asked for an estimated number of students likely to return:
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

Monday 15 Tuesday16 | Wednesday17 | Thursday18 | Friday 19 June
June 2020 June 2020 June 2020 . June 2020 2020
Year 12 Year 10 Year 12 Year 10 Year 10
Number of 43 68 48 74 46
students on
site :
Number of 55 89 55 8% 60
students
invited to
attend
% attendance 84% 76% 87% 83% 77%

This showed parents and students had faith in the academy’s reopening and safety plans. Students and staff
followed social distancing, the one-way system and personal hygiene measures. After all the preparation and
deadlines, it was great to see students returning to our academy community. We received emails from
parents who were pleased with the reopening arrangements and thanked us for offering some taught lessons.

Support for parents and students in provision for remote learning

Throughout the closure, staff continued to set work for ali year groups and provide feedback in a timely manner
via the Virtual Learning Environment (VLE). Students were encouraged to raise any work concerns via the VLE
comments section, as well as checking emails periodically for any correspondence from the academy.

Home-schooling presented .challenges for some families, but our approach via the VLE ensured fair access to
materials for all students. It gave a measure of consistency across departments and a single point of access for
students. Staff, including the SLT, monitored tasks and feedback given. We were pleased with the quality of
work completed.

In the early stages of lockdown, the advice from the Local Authority and National Online Safety was that schools
should not be using live streaming for online lessons for safeguarding and GDPR reasons. On the back of this
advice, which was also supported by the teaching unions, the academy took the correct decision at the time to
not introduce face-to-face online learning. This was a decision which many other secondary schools followed.
The academy did look at different online platforms, but the risks were too great. At the time, there was also hope
that schools would return to normality before the end of the summer term.

However, as the lockdown continued and schools only partially reopened to certain year groups, the academy
began to think longer term. The national picture was that online remote learning was likely to continue into
September in some form. The Local Authority and National Online Safety responded to this and changed its
advice to schools supporting the use of face-to-face online learning using the correct platform. Some parents
enquired about the academy reviewing its use of technology to support remote learning.

The Department for Education and Local Authority response was to:

o Recommend use of the online platform TEAMS;
e Offer training to schools to introduce face-to-face online learning;
* Provide a ‘buddy school’ to work with.

On 27 May 2020, Microsoft changed how TEAMS was used to provide increased protection for users.
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Objectives and activities (continued)

With such a rapidly changing landscape and the continued closure of the academy to Key Stage 3 students, the
academy made the decision to change its approach. The academy trained a group of staff on how to use
TEAMS to trial amongst department staff in the first instance. This was done in a careful and considered way so
that staff and students felt confident in its use, especially as training is done remotely. The academy produced
protocols for staff and rules for students to protect and safeguard both groups. Other secondary schools followed
suit.

The academy took a staggered approach to its launch to boost confidence for staff and students with a focus
initially on Key Stage 3 students. This was because these students had not received face-to-face contact with the
academy, unlike Year 10 and 12 students who had patrtially returned.

From week commencing 15 June 2020, all students accessed an assembly recorded by their respective Head of
Year. This was trialled by the Head of Year 7 and the feedback was very positive in helping to motivate students,
encourage them to stay in touch with the academy and set the scene for remote learning.

From 22 June 2020, the academy introduced some face-to-face time with form tutors so that students had
valuable interaction with their tutor, could discuss any concerns and ‘meet’ their peer group again. In addition,
the academy delivered some face-to-face remote learning with Key Stage 3 students in core subjects (Maths,
English and Science) two weeks before the end of term.

The issue of staff workload was important as teachers continued to teach Year 10 and 12 students in the
academy, supervise vulnerable/key worker students, whilst also setting and marking work for some/all year
groups.

The academy made the right decision to be cautious about introducing new technology, but when the
Government backed its use, with training and protocols provided, William Farr decided to advance its use of
technology in supporting remote learning as the academy prepared for September.

Provision for vulnerable students (this included students with an Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP),
Social Worker, SEND and those students whose parents were key workers)

After the academy closed to all students on 20 March 2020, it remained open for vuinerable students Monday to
Friday. This included the Easter and May half-term holiday period where supervision was provided by staff
volunteers. From Easter until May half term, the number of students attending the academy was relatively low
with an average of 7 students attending each day. The message from the Government was that students should
stay at home if they could. In the 2 weeks after May half term, student numbers increased as the Government
changed its position saying that these children should be encouraged to attend the academy. For this time
period, we saw an average of 18 students attending each day. With more parents returning to work, this number
increased further and the academy needed to increase staff availability to cater for the wide range of students’
needs. Of the 114 vulnerable children on our register, 75% accessed the academy’s provision since lockdown
started as shown in the table below. This shows that the academy has catered well for its vulnerable children as
part of our inclusive agenda.
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Objectives and activities (continued)

Number of students who Number of eligible students
have attended the who could have attended the %

academy since Ibcli'ébwn academy since lockdown
Students who declared parents
were key workers 65 68 96
Vulnerable students with EHCP* | 6 . 31 - 19 |~
Additional vulnerable students
identified by the academy 7 7 100
Vulnerable students with a
social worker (Looked After
Children, Child in Need) 6 : 8 75
Total 85 114 75

* Risk assessments were in place for all students with an EHCP. These were reviewed either weekly or
fortnightly. The purpose of the risk assessment was to ascertain, considering all available information and in
partnership with the parent, whether a child should remain at home or attend the academy in some capacity.
This was a bespoke approach depending on individual needs and circumstances.

After May half term, the academy had 2 classes running each day for vulnerable students (Key Stage 3 and Key
Stage 4/5). Each class was supervised by a teacher and a teaching assistant was also present to support
students with SEND. Governors spoke to these vulnerable students during their weekly visit.

6 students with an EHCP attended the academy since lockdown started. 3 students with an EHCP were already
attending an alternative provider. Contact was maintained with these students. From Monday 30 March 2020, it
was arranged for one student with an EHCP to attend a specialist centre (St Francis), in order for the student’s
needs to be met due to staffing restrictions on site.

Provision for SEND students attending the academy
The academy responded to the DfE guidance that SEND students should be supported when attending the
academy through:

. Teaching Assistant (TA) support for key worker and vulnerable students;

. TA support for Year 10 core subject lessons — this was the same TA for continuity as the subject
specialists change;

. TA support for options lessons — TAs were deployed accordmg to their subject specialism in order to
strengthen support;

. Offering Year 10 Learning Support to provide overlearning and/or a focus on wellbeing;

. Availability of a breakout space for anxious SEND students or for bespoke delivery.

Provision for SEND students accessing remote learning
Some SEND students found it difficult to access class work remotely through the VLE. The academy supported
these students through the following ways:

. Modified timetables to reduce time pressures and incorporate enrichment opportunities;
. ‘Catch-up programme for Year 7 students — remotely administered by a TA,
. Heads of Department making work set accessible for SEND students;
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Objectives and activities (continued)

. Promoting the use of the ‘Read for me’ button on the VLE. Students press the button and the task is read
to them;
. SEND staff being in contact with students to check accessibility of work and welfare;

. Enhanced contact between Head of Year and SEND Co-ordinator (SENDCo) with parents to answer
queries, alleviate issues and refine support;

. Support from external agencies, for example, the Educational Psychologist has been used by the SEND
department and students have received the support remotely;
. Head of Year, Head of Department and SENDCo working together to make reasonable adjustments so

students can access learning. Where there have been issues with accessibility or the pitching of work at
the correct level, solutions have been found, for example, reducing work to core subjects for a fixed period

of time;
. SEND department organising the repair of equipment for individual students;
. Support materials being collated and published to parents - positive feedback received.

Communication with SEND parents
Some SEND parents were understandably anxious about their child's educational provision and support during
lockdown. The academy supported these parents through the following measures:

. Enhanced contact throughout the academy closure between Head of Year/SENDCo and parents. The
early phase of the academy closure saw some queries about workload and supporting parents in settling
students into a new routine. Supporting parents in managing their expectations proved to be important;

. Completing all EHCP Annual Reviews despite the national SEND guidance granting an extension to the
timeframe for completion. 5 EHCP reviews were carried out remotely and parents have been grateful for
the support;

. Information on Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) was communicated to parents of children with ASD

. Reports were submitted to support parents’ applications for school transport, further paediatric screening
and Disability Living Allowance (DLA);

. SEND screening of children both remotely and using social distancing measures;

. Conducting attendance and input into Team around the Child (TAC), a form of Early Help, meetings.

On 15 June 2020, the DfE announced that schools could provide face-to-face meetings with students in other
year groups in addition to Year 10 and 12 students. A re-orientation event was delivered before the end of term
for Year 7, 8 and 9 students with an EHCP. This took the form of a wellbeing session, activities-and a celebratory
farewell for the summer. The aim of the event was to familiarise students with the new academy environment,
especially those students with sensory needs and to alleviate any worries/anxieties they may have prior to the
summer holidays. Feedback from parents was positive.

Provision for SEND students starting Year 7 in September s

in September 2020, the school was due to have 4 EHCP students and 46 SEND students who required support
(known as SEND K students). A number of the K students appeared to have more complex needs than some
students with an EHCP and we are likely to see an increase in EHCP applications and provision. To provide
transition for SEND students, the academy put in place the following measures during lockdown:

. Head of Year/Assistant Head of Year visited primary schools/conducting online meetings with Year 6
students;

SENDCo and Head of Year communicated regularly with Year 6 parents answering any questions;
Academy video has been made with a virtual tour of the academy;

SENDCo joined remote EHCP/SEND Support transition meetings;

Welcome postcard was sent to all Year 6 SEND children, together with an invitation for parents to have a
conversation with a member of the SEND team;

. Writing of Pupil Passports to support Quality First Teaching.

e o o o

Page 16



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Objectives and activities (continued)

The academy planned to deliver the Year 7 Induction Day in September.

Summary of SEND issues raised during lockdown and solutions found

Issue Solution

Reduced work to core subjects for fixed time. Slowly
reintroduced non-core subjects.

Modification to timetable.

SENDCo and Head of Year provided guidance to
parents on chunking tasks into smaller timeframes.
Head of Department set interim dates and break down
tasks in order for SEND children to experience success
and avoid feeling overwhelmed.

1 known student who has an EHCP and is a Looked
After Child —in the care of the Local Authority (LAC)
qualified for a laptop

Students managing workload

Working to timeframes and task completion

Long-term projects being set in subjects

IT access for students

Some parental concerns (small number) around
fack of online learning for Key Stage 3 students

Academy introduced face-to-face online learning for
Key Stage 3, starting with core subjects.

Some queries (small number) asking how
knowledge gaps will be closed on return to the

National guidance was released regarding refocusing
the curriculum, focusing on key concepts and

commonalities of concepts across subjects to help
reinforce the identified learning. Government COVID-
19 Catch-Up programme announced on 19 june 2020.
Whilst the national expectation was for students to
attend the academy, we found through risk assessing
that the majority of students were well placed to
remain at home. However, we continued to review
this with parents. The offer of a re-orientation event
proved to be popular.

Video produced so that students could see a tour of
the academy. However, we knew this was not the
same experience and delivered an enhanced Induction
in September.

| academy

Low number of EHCP students attending the
academy

Year 6 Transition — lack of an: experiential event

Provision for Free School Meal (FSM) students

Information Technology (IT) access for FSM students

Before the academy closed in March, the academy audited which students had access to IT at home. No child in
receipt of FSM was identified at that time. Since the academy closure, 6 students across the academy (3 FSM)
were identified as needing some support as they either had no IT at all at home or were sharing IT with
siblings/parents working from home. The academy loaned laptops to the 6 students. 1 laptop was purchased for
a Year 12 student using the Bursary fund. The academy had 4 laptops remaining to allocate as necessary. The
Government announced the provision of laptops for disadvantaged students to support with online learning. The
academy received an allocation of 14 laptops. In addition, the Government provided the academy with 6 4G
routers to be loaned to students. '
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In ascertaining who should receive one of these laptops, the academy applied the following criteria:

In receipt of FSM;

Siblings, therefore sharing may be difficult;

Local knowledge from the Head of Year regarding home situation;

Known issues with not completing work from the recent staff work capture exercise;

Students not returning to the academy for any face-to-face teaching in Term 6 due to shielding/parental
choice.

13 students were identified and received laptops in late June. It was unfortunate that this scheme took some
time to be implemented, but with the national challenges, this was not surprising. The academy can retain the IT
equipment after use.

FSM payments
When the academy closed on 20 March 2020, we took the decision to make direct payments of £15 per week in
place of vouchers for the following reasons:

Knowledge of our families;

Geographical spread of families made the decision of one supermarket difficult;
Rural locations had implications for transport;

Some families did not have easy access to transport;

Families preferred to shop locally at convenience stores in their village.

We were aware of the potential risks of running payments in this way, but in assessing the risk, concluded that
the same risks would pertain to vouchers; mainly that children might not receive the benefit. Feedback from
parents was positive.

The academy paid £15 per week for 13 consecutive weeks, including the Easter 2-week holiday and the 1-week
May half-term holiday to 114 children. The cost of this was £1,710 per week, totalling £22,230. These costs were
to be recouped. The School Business Leader investigated at the start of the academy closure that from an
auditing perspective, this method of payment was appropriate given the circumstances. The academy continued
the weekly payments throughout the summer holidays in line with the recent Government decision to continue
with the voucher scheme. The academy has applied for this expenditure to be reimbursed by the Government.

At the start of the academy closure and for a short period, the academy offered packed lunches for parents to
collect as an interim measure and whilst the academy was awaiting more information regarding the national
voucher scheme.

FSM attendance

6 FSM students accessed supervisory provision in the academy under the key worker/vulnerable criteria. FSM
as a ‘group’ were not a priority group identified by the Government for attending school and not all children in
receipt of FSM were classed as ‘vulnerable’.

Year 10 FSM students (15-19 Jun 2020)

Attending Could Possibly Attend %
17 22 77

5 FSM students were not attending the academy - 2 were shielding, 1 had chosen not to return and 2 had no
reason.
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Year 12 FSM students (15-19 June 2020)

Attending ‘Could Possibly Attend’ ' %
4 4 i 100

FSM additional information :
During closure, 4 LAC attended the academy, out of a possible 5. A risk assessment was written for all LAC
students.

2 students with an EHCP were in receipt of FSM; there was a risk assessment in place for these doubly
disadvantaged students and weekly contact was made between home and the academy.

1 student with an EHCP was in receipt of FSM and was, in addition, a Previously Looked After Child (PLAC); a
risk assessment was in place and weekly contact was made between home and the academy.

FSM online learning
Whilst there were clearly benefits to online lessons in terms of student learning, for disadvantaged students who
were:

. Sharing IT resources with siblings/parents at home;

. Taking on caring responsibilities for parents or siblings;

. Had no access to IT and were relying on photocopied resources organised and sent home by Head-of
Year.

the approach that the academy took in making resources available via the VLE was beneficial to some
vulnerable students in that they could organise their workload around their personal circumstances. The
expectation to be available for a lesson at a specific time proved difficult for some. As we moved forward with
online contact with staff, maintaining parity between this new way of working and the existing model of provision
via the VLE was important.

Communication with stakeholders

Throughout the closure, the academy kept parents, staff and governors regularly updated on developments
through letters, emails, remote meetings and face-to-face contact with social distancing. Feedback from
stakeholders was positive and they appreciated the information provided. Heads of Year/SENDCo/SLT
maintained regular contact with vulnerable students.

Parents of students who were not submitting work via the VLE were contacted by telephone/email and support
offered. This included subject support through the Head of Department and SENDCo. In a few cases, students
were invited to attend the academy and join the vulnerable/key worker group.

Mental health and wellbeing
The academy continued to assist families suffering from financial hardship. 10 food and care parcels were
delivered to families during lockdown.

With the significant family pressures placed upon parents during this time to manage work, home life and home
learning, a parent support pack was written and made available on the academy website to support the wellbeing
of families. This useful information signposted support for students on maintaining positive mental wellbeing and
managing stress and anxiety. A number of parents said how helpful this was.
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Line Managers maintained regular contact with staff to check on their wellbeing. Sadly, 7 members of staff
suffered a family bereavement during lockdown, one of which was COVID-19 related. The School Chaplain
offered support.

The academy launched a William Farr Staff Community Hub via the online platform TEAMS, where staff posted
any pictures, photographs, words or messages to help upliift everybody and keep our community together. This
was well received.

23 students were referred to Student Welfare since the lockdown with 13 students (56%) from Year 10 and 12.

6 staff were receiving support from the Head of Welfare for mental health and wellbeing.

Financial budget

The financial impact of COVID-19 on the academy has been kept under constant review. Some of the key
highlights during this period were as follows:

. The ESFA extended the deadline for the 3-year budget plan submissions to 29 September 2020 (from 1

July 2020}, allowing us time to finalise our 2019/20 year-end position and the impact on reserves to carry
forwards to next year’s budget;

. Finance processes and procedures were adapted to accommodate remote working while maintaining
rigorous controls;
. We did not adopt the Government FSM voucher scheme, which was slow and cumbersome to implement.

We took the decision to provide the cash equivalent FSM payment, which is transferred directly into bank
accounts weekly. The academy’s finance team has confirmed that this was a good decision with part
refunded during the summer COVID exceptional costs grant funding and the remainder to be applied for in
the autumn grant funding;

. Music lessons were cancelled as the academy closed and all refunds were processed;

. Insurance claims for cancelled trips were processed,;

. All extraordinary expenditure specifically attributable to COVID-19 was monitored and the initial claim of
£54.4k was made from the grant fund which was available for us to reclaim costs or losses up to the value
of £75k;

Auditors

New internal auditors, Forrester Boyd, were appointed in February 2020. Two internal audits were planned but
could not be carried out due to closure, however a single internal audit was carried out remotely during August,
focused on key areas of interest highlighted by the ESFA at their conference earlier in the year.

Contracts
The tender process for a new Management Information System (MIS) contract continued during this period,
albeit through remote demonstrations and meetings.

Estates

Site preparation for Year 10 and Year 12 reopening

In line with the COVID-19 Risk Assessment, the site was prepared for partial reopening with the planning and
implementation of:

Full site deep clean;

Traffic management system;

Temporary internal one-way system;

Clear site signage promoting safety measures, including social distancing;

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), sanitising stations and chemical fog machine purchased
. Medical isolation room prepared;
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. Medical staff training on use of PPE;

. Cleaning regimes;

. Temporary outdoor hand-washing facilities erected.
Academy shops

The uniform and stationery shop remained closed as social distancing could not be managed within the space.
The academy uniform shop was reopened during the summer holidays, with changes in place to minimise
transmission risk including: one-way system; new returns procedure; new contactless and online payment
procedures. -

Summary
| am immensely proud of all the work staff at William Farr have done between March and July 2020.

The way staff joined together to support each other and go out of their way to continue to provide the best "
education we can for all our students at this difficuit time was highly commendabile. | could not have asked any

more from my SLT, who have worked tirelessly since lockdown began to respond to the deluge of information

coming from the DfE on a daily basis.

Our overarching aim remains to continue to encourage all students to engage ‘with life in all its fullness’ (John
10:10) in the ‘new normat’. ‘
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Strategic report
Achievements and performance
a. Key performance indicators

Examination Results 2020

Students did not take exams for the summer 2020. Instead there was a process whereby the academy provided
centre assessed grades to the exam boards for their moderation.

The process of generating the centre assessed grades was fair and rigorous with teachers agreeing grades and
ranking on the basis of a range of permitted evidence. An internal -standardisation ensured consistency within
and across departments with all grading meetings supervised by the SLT.

After controversy over the Ofqual ‘algorithm’ for exam board moderation, it was decided that students’ final
resuits would be the higher of the centre assessed grade and the exam board moderated grade.

Results this year are not comparable with those in previous years and it is not possible to infer any trends in the
results.

GCSE
Attainment was the second highest on record (after 2017) at 55.1 points on average. Typically, this is between
44.5 and 44.7 nationally, although 2020 national data is not available.

The percentage of students achieving Standard BASICS (4+ in English AND Maths) was 82.7% (compared to
the 2019 national average of 64.6%), and Strong BASICS (5+ in English AND Maths) was 60.3% (compared to
the 2019 national average of 43.2%)

Two fémale students were awarded grade 9s across all subjects.

A further three students were awarded grade 8 or higher across all subjects.

A total of 7.2% of students achieved grade 7 (old grade A} or higher across all subjects.

All students achieved a grade (1+) in ALL subjects. 96.2% of students achieved a grade 2 or higher in All
subjects. '

In total 82.6% of students achieved an estimated positive progress score. 2020 progress estimates suggest the
progress measure for this cohort will be the highest on record for William Farr
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A Level
The A Level cohort was the smallest William Farr has seen in recent history with 108 students completing the
two-year Key Stage 5 courses.

Typically, national data shows that approximately 25-27% of all grades awarded are grade A+. William Farr
achieved 35.8% with 14.1% grade A*.

Compared to previous years, performance at grade A+ was considerably higher; almost 10 percentage points
higher than our previous highest, which is unlikely to be achieved again.

William Farr's pass rate was 100% (excluding the Extended Project Qualification), which is higher than the
typical national data which is 97-98%, and higher than William Farr’s previous highest which was set last year at
98.2%.

William Farr broke the C/B barrier, achieving an average B grade for the first time.

15 students in total achieved A*-A in ALL of their qualifications, with two of those 15 achieving ALL A*s. A further
25 students achieved A*-B in ALL of their qualifications.

Estimates of progress measures suggest progress will be positive for ALL groups of students, with the 5
disadvantaged students performing particularly well.

In terms of university places, 90% of students accepted their firm offer at University (equalling 2019 which was
the highest percentage in the last seven years) with 22% of students being placed at Russell Group Universities.
There was 1 student whotsecured an Oxbridge place and 4 students who have gone on to study medicine.

The percentage of students receiving an offer from all of the courses they applied to was 74% of students which
is our highest result on this measure and is a testament to the reputation of our academy in successfully
preparing our students for further academic study.

Key Financial Performance Indicators
The Finance Committee used the following Key Financial Performance Indicators:

. Operate within the agreed annual budget.
. Update and improve the agreed 5 year forecast to build contingency and revenue/capital reserves in line
with the Finance Policy. This was achieved.

For the next four to five years, the Key Financial Performance Indicator will be to balance the level of resources
allocated to staff salaries and other costs, spending no more than 80% of income on the staffing budget.

The whole academy Key Performance Indicators were attendance; persistent absenteeism; persistent
exclusions; percentage of staff leaving the school per year; participation in house activities; staff absence for
non-academy business; percentage of budget spent on staffing; average number of students per teacher; ability
to assess results; BASICS in English and mathematics; GCSE progress 8 score; A*-B at A Level; post-16 valued
added score. Because of the Covid-19 situation and academy closure, analysis of these indicators did not take
place.
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b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparlng the financial statements. Fuﬁher details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

Financial review
a. Reserves policy and Financial review

The majority of the Trust's annual income is obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of
which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received during the year ended 31 August 2020 and its
associated expenditure are shown as restricted general funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the period ended 31 August 2020, total unrestricted and restricted income (excluding capital funding
within the restricted fixed asset fund) was £8,614,827. This compares with expenditure (excluding depreciation
within the restricted fixed asset fund and pension reserve expenditure) of £8,287,697 to give a surplus of income
over expenditure on revenue funding totalling £327,130. This equates to the change in balance of the restricted
general funds (excluding pension reserves) plus unrestricted funds reported at the previous year end.

As at 31 August 2020, restricted general funds (excluding pension reserves) were £384,340 and unrestricted
funds were £110,464.

At the end of the prior financial period (year ended 31 August 2019) the academy had free reserves (restricted

- general funds excluding pension reserves plus unrestricted funds) of £167,674. During the current financial year
the academy has taken robust action to restore the equivalent reserves to a surplus. This has been achieved
through imposing strict cost controls, whilst still maintaining educational standards. The academy has taken
advice from the ESFA and external advisors during this period.

At 31 August 2020 the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit was £3,651,000. Although the deficit is
material, the academy is taking the advice of the actuary regarding the repayment structure. Advised future
contributions have also been included within the annual budget.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies
The SLT and trustees monitor financial exposure, using management accounts recording actual activity against
forecast in conjunction with procedures laid out in its Finance Policy.

The Board of Trustees recognises the importance of setting a detailed budget, which is compiled for each line of
income and expenditure, using incremental budgeting based on input from SLT budget stakeholders prior to
discussion at SLT meetings. Following discussions at SLT meetings, a final draft budget recommended by the
SLT is presented to the Resources Committee for consideration and then taken to the Board of Trustees for
approval.

The Board of Trustees recognises the importance of regular budget monitoring in helping to detect accounting
errors and identify, as early as possible, potential under-spending and over-spending.
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The Headteacher, School Business Leader and SLT monitored the budget on a monthly basis through 2019/20
by reviewing printouts from the academy’s financial system for:

. Errors;

. Miscoding;

. Large or unusual items;

. Potential underspends or overspends against budget; and
. Taking appropriate action where necessary.

The Board of Trustees recognises the importance of proper financial administration to safeguard against
inaccuracies and out of date information being used to make erroneous financial decisions in the academy. '
During the preparation of the accounts, month end reconciliations of key Balance Sheet accounts, including bank
accounts, aged debtors and aged creditors, are completed and reviewed by the School Business Leader.
Funding streams and salary costs are also monitored and reconciled to budget so that the financial risk of a
deficit budget occurring is reduced.

Reserves policy
The trustees will review the reserve levels of the academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. -

The trustees have determined that £50,000 per annum should go into capital reserves and £25,000 should be
put into revenue reserves, building the revenue reserves up to £160,000 (equivalent to one week’s operating
reserve). Approval by the Board of Trustees is required to put a smaller figure into either capital or revenue
reserves.

As at 31 August 2020, restricted general funds (excluding pensmn reserves) were £384,340 and unrestricted
funds were £110,464, giving a total of £494,804.

Funds that can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets totalled £10,729,871.
b. Investment policy

There are no investments beyond cash deposits in the Academy Trust's bank. The trustees have not wished to
make any speculative investments.
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c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The academy has a Risk Register as laid out in the Academies Financial Handbook which is reviewed
periodically at SLT and Resources Committee meetings with either a rationale to tolerate the risk or control
procedures to be put in place with a target date to treat the risk. Risk levels are categorised as low, medium or
high. The table on the following page details the high risk categories.

Risks are categorised as:
Financial stability;
Strategic and reputational;
Operational;

Compliance;

Standards

Governance.

Page 26



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

ted by guarantee)

imi

(A company |

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

IO 1A 50 Bujaq jou :M.HJ”___““ . fiieinanied
1010840 fiq siciealpul Gupuny 3w Jou syabie) JuawWsI|osy -g4 vl 6u n_.”.mohumco_w nsul s Smof n :m_o .,._a d feuoneinda)
wawanayoe pue wopusnas| 0% T o o uonnsduiso | Bupewew aisewens amsug | PUF 26eus | 4 !
10§ paIOYUOW HON 1M 4 pasealsy Y5y m,L_.mx_mE - ;
S30IN0S [PUIAIRD UONEDNPS JO
suonoadsul [eussKa 10 uoneonps jo firanysp
pue [euaju fiq pasiel sanssy fuanljap ays Joj aoce|d yiom
b sanwwos fajes pue yieaH ay) 10§ aoeyd y1om 3jqeANs | [eloueul4 vss 3
SSNOSIp 01133 SWea) 9|gennsun ue 81031313 pue . .
ay fiq payybiybiy sanss| UE3|D ‘WieMm 'ajes e uleIUIEi
aJuBUAUIRlA R SHH YL wieMm 10 348 10U JOOYIS
pamainal noI4IP 9 sy buneoipu 3|qeuIRISNSUN 3J0J31d aw| O J9MO|
S3IMONAS [y PES| WNDIIND InolIp 9q 141 buheoipul Iqeurey N 3i0j31ay 1} 19A0 19MO|
51 ajqRIswIpaman] (3 ¥ fipeayje saresuanno i pue ybiy 003 $1 51509 03 Wi pue ggueyisss||  |e1dueul4 AP 4
ol suondo s1eafi G 13U 1340 suonslold buneis jo abejussiad] 0151509 buyyers dasy ol
siseq S8NIBS3) JO S{aNs| Mo Ijddns * u 59 f
fiyeesh € uo paioyuow pue ¥ 0) 3np S3oue “ *cm _30 _ ‘afied 'sabem mwmo..u__ ms_m_ ”MH ;mm..”w w“.cu _._Ooc:_oumm:w M ’ wu_ou“_m vss 3
pasedaid mojyses [enuuy P 18qjueq #0q 1 Aqey) peoy 3 L] reoveuy
908
Ui wayshs prefiue] pEe 01616 Wau angnd ays jo s19qIAW
woyy payso) saeb pue sioop 2115 uo panods algnd | 1130 519€ 10 fied 03 9jqe | snolabuep fijjenuaiod woy
g feuonessdg | wss E|
'Buuiow ay) Ul uondasal 3 JO s1IaqaLl umowUN |  PUB [OOYDS 3Y) 0) SS3008 § 3JBS BIE 4§35 PUR SIUIPNIS
u) fiNp UO slaquiaw | S 'auis uieb sioysin pawesun ainsuzbuipienbajes
ay) punole Buiduay Jaswiay
J0I9E RO ‘PiaYy 3y asn Juspms
gng puUe JOJOBNUOT) Udamiaq 0 g UORIPUOD JUINT i |euonesdp vss 3
femiapun s5a001d (2627 0] S5300€ OU 5€Y [00YdG 104 pjoly WONOQ 210353y
JORUCD
ino pucfiaq fipueatjlubis seale yled 1e9 paysabuos| sease yed sabuoo
818 SuaWSAOUI 213A sulea u__h_m ua _woum 0) anp Jur sua _“_hm [} wM:vmmu uapmis | |euonelad
nq syawaned uo fieys 0t § fanp snq fiq pasies suiaouon) I Siuapl 1 3N U} SJu3pL 19Np SUIPMS| - [euOkeIadn vss 3
swapns 03 fiunlul Jo ysiy o1 funlul 10 sso| Juanslg
sjuapmis ainsua 03 buin ease
ayi josed o) np uo yerg
Ui8u0? 40 Seaie ajep o) puads jo 1bpnq 3l .” wm__wn omwcmcz
Bunybiybiy sioussnor) pue < ubiy e MmoYs m_vm o_u 196 “ 3y) JO Jusweabeuew uapnid o mw.wa.m_wh_. “mvmmou._oQ mipgers
115 015u0d3) ainypuadza J § < 4o 4 PIoY 196pNnq 34} 104 JUNOSIE 3L 10U puel s {e1oueul4 vss 3
ue JWOOUl SHNGINSIP YSS o1 suodaiabpnq fiyauoly s30p amipuada pauLely 196pnq uiyum uleWwa)
P i} T : S30p aImpuadia eyt
= Sponsd buyion ——
8jowal Buunp asueldwod 31ns0}o 10 burytom
aInsus o) paydepe 9)0Wsa. 0) SNp pasiwoIdwod
sainpasoid pue s3s5s9904d asueljdwod jeioueul 4
paivedw fjeanebau s1-QIACD
no pained [ paroeduwl Mopysen 51 buniodai fuoymers | ybnosyy saoueuy buibeuepy eloUEl v 3
JIPNE [EUISIRI PUE [BUIAUI pue saoueuy jooyog | :ueid 9i69iens Jo apising i€t '4 | SsOAr
61-QIA0D 01 3np aInyipuadze
#ojyseos pue 1a6pnq pauueld PASE3IOU} JO SWODY) Ul (B
) sabueya fiue sybyybiy e smoys Bupiodal fijyiuoysy
Bunsodas fijyyuow yss
N UuIoNuOKy bunsiEx) |, '._ JU. ,b _ 2N
S103E3IpU| sysiy T -__106aye | .. woa| sanwwor
uejq s1baeng
poogiIyy bujuien fjueg f a1

Page 27




WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

ited by guarantee)

m

(A company |

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

jool aoed v swayshs Guiyoes] 1H 118 ae1djo) &w wnipayy 9l b ¥ Bupyoen
Buue(d 196pnq tan2q e 01 Buinoly : : ‘ N s531604d [eulay]
Selpawal
3jofio Jejnbase uo oy ysapdiay ayy
sucda) yonoadsul jeuANsI 1H ¥ss ae1jo) @ Aol 8 b ¢ Jo asn pue wea) ay) fiq
bunoyuow yuesuon
suoneubisal Gumo)joy @ F— Buiuue|d
saimonns bulyjels 1apisuoy 9403 1H P3N a4 i € ajqelawn fipe3
spuadsiano fijnusp 01 - BulioTuOw
m:onm_ apue| :.m_.h v.%w:m_mn 1H vSS 1e13j0 | @ E:._..wrs 02 g " joupai] pue 10398
I . Yll# SUCNHEHI9U0231
4o Bupoyuow 6uob ug
sueq fiyaapm
2aNIWLIOD SBIeIS]
0) payuasald |esodoid Mol
i dnbe Buoyow 1H vss @ winipay 02 [ ¥ fisan ais uo panods
pajue/MuN JO J3qUINY
pue Buisus; jeuonippy
$9}|dul] 1019 UG
sBuipassoud |ebaj snsing 9400 1H @ 9 4 ay fiq fiepno
[e19ueYY PANUNUOT
gy p
hun yJed jed Juoly woyy B1IS UO S3|9IYan
513p|0y 86peq anjq 1dadka fiuew o00) buimole
fiubry 30U poouyi sied (| fuueq puswwoosy 1H vss AW 8 § o s13buep i sMoys
- 39RIWWOY) SIS O) WBWISSISSE Y5y
PERIWIQNS JUIWISSISSE YSiY
SpUdN] 9SIIAPE 3S13N3)
uonesuoyine
opdonseres buisuaddey 18P0 10§ 510439 iH vss @ wnipayy g G ¢ 0) suonoe bunesipul
3140 10edwing fijay) 10p Vs fiq ueas Buisq S19pI0 . 5 sI9pjoyayers
: 136pnq woug yoeqpas 4
Bunipne pue
Buntodsi jeroueuy Suicbug 894 pue
‘fipeinbas gy 03 3ybnoiq 3NIWWOD 30IN0S3)
pue fipeinbai pamainal 1H vss @ wnipai 0c § 4 ‘175 Y paseys
juswissassy Ysiy 61-AQIAOD pue voo:voa mtOan
(0OYIS J[OYM UlIlM PapPNIIY]
=5 By . LT I S O T P LY N N
SNON vlb!.u_.oa aimnj pauueld ULM M.._ans. l)..‘._.:om —.ie1ajo11e31] |—.2 uAopydn ...m.m— 461K +52) [—J109g {—.Jeduy i..‘_u.__ou_.. Il_ wwcwue.h.”umm
) MLISHLH Saouy 13437 ¥siy ¥sid 19N

Page 28




WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

ted by guarantee)

imi

(A company |

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

.m.cWM_meu_mwom.w _"M”M a 9 2 3w buiaq jou paulejulew Jou aje s{ana| spiepuels AdQ 3
.mmmoo.m 23UBINSSY n._wmzc s1961e3 aesipui sjuiodeseq|  sjeas| Juswanayoe ybiH | uswaasiyoe ybiy uiesulely
sieafi ¢ firana WG5p Wiat ‘pauleliew
PaHaIASL S{3A3] LORNQIIUOT Gt g ¢ 110da) uonenjea [enuuy | Buoj e o) Buipea) paronpap ale suoNNqINUOd 54yl  [eloueuly vss 3
: S 9J& SUO|JNGIUOD J931I00Y| ro sjans| ayendosdde ainsuz
"UONoUES [[E1oueu]
ubiY Gt [ I uayeyapun buen Y4d4ay weayubis e yasaidal "d09 aoueldwon vSS 3
fipealje ssauateme Hdan o u_q.:.uo .mm_‘_omoz fug Wil 9oueIdwoD |ng 3insu3 :
TibuIpIo39€ pauue(d sy
JoueuAUlew jo awwesboid ay3jdwoou) siedas um_m_mhﬂm_.u M_‘__.mﬁ m.w“m.woﬂx” pauieuiew sy uawdinba euonesad
{Iny 3insua o) fipuabip s § ¢ ‘lleg 03 sueys wawdinb3y 1 Butonp 1Pun4 40 408 pue a)is ay) 18y} 3INSU3 [euohelado vss 1
013np ||ey Sjanaf Buidinlag :
H1064 Wed) 30UBUIUEIA
Qoyun__ ”M_w nhﬂm“ﬂuwﬂmwﬁ 9|0 seah § e utm SuUOndUNY diseq
uswdinba sunure f . .
fuedwoo ol g ¢ bl | Ul E.um_._. [9ns)] ushe ._.m_o 1189 0) _oo;mom Wiomiapy 1 J] 8Ya Jo ainjiey levonessdg P an
eusoa Ue fiq H:0MmaY e _B_:m ojainjeq mucocmz_o Jo hypqeun uesyiubis | ayy 01 anp awnumop plony
ap jo sishjee fgauopy 9 4O ainjiey seinbay | 01 spes) y1omau jo anjie 4
"Ued|9un N|BUISESIoU]
Buiwooaq aiogaseuy
ul30u09 Jo seare Buifijuapl
wea) asnoy ul yoddns 9l N 4 oI SJUSPMSIRIS |o0yas pue fusnbay plepues ysaylfiy euonead
0) sJaues|o 10e)u09 fioldaq x.p_: o mho&ﬁo 558| paueajo bulaq jooyos { ay) 01 paues)o aq oy jooyas feuenesse vss 1
) J ay) JO Seale JWOS U)
Bunjnssal s1aquinu 3je1s Mo
spuadsiano aebniw 8l ‘puadsiano [enuajod | spuedsiano 'ieaf jeioueuy mo.._omc_._co.w cw m_.ww:Wmo._
0} 416 fig uonoe abuing 9 ¢ suse ysedalogeahijopug|  ayyjo pus ay) fiq ssuejeq mm_u mc_w:_o:_ 16pnq [e1oueul4 1H 4
10U 530p 135pnq s aey ) paouefeq € 3INSUS O]
S93NIWWOD 3nNd3dsa) [fes Sbuluioopoys T3 B
o corwc.:o Ul we 3)edipu; s130)40 yoddng uodal ] uonsag ‘paisjg) uonsadsul spiepue
SpiepuES o msm_“.o.mww%u 8 s ¢ 7] 'S19SIAPYY SSausnN0ay3 100d 53n31931 [o0YsS | 1o aoe|d Ul 933 yiomiaded plepuRIS Anr 4
piep ) : Inbad UeS390I(] 'MalAd) 1934 ‘sjuawabueise ainsu3y
aiendoidde
pasieayal uojeseadid jo yoe| paredipul OU 51 UONENOBAS UE 310U ainpaosold unog-3307 euonessd
-l13# sa1pnooid uonendeny 8l 9 € 1B3JY) € JO 3UBNDI0 3511 1 ms.oo%.c%_o:_ _o_mE: e 10J suonesedaid axeln) [euohesacn AP 3
2oNILILIOD — H3¥ JO SIUENSUDD 198W
: 10§ psuueidpaw 5n20JJo yor|pue wea | o) fussaoau yum pabebus sl
pUE 39URUL4 JO HIRY) 0z G N P 19¢ 4 JO jor| P! 1 b Wis p WSS vsS 4
%136 6q SHainel epnBay buleq jou syseot0y 136png diysiapea jo 1snouin] {ou siapes| ioiuas i fiyjgein|  |eloueuly
i |e1oueuly une) buoj 0y sysu
Suondy 4 102G JUIIOIUOKY bunsizg)J e = S F7)
-~ -~ -~ -~ -~ -~
e sjonuo bunsizgz) A - Jeduw) 2 510)e31pu) L sysiy L :mwm._.qom. _.._n". [._.OQSaU <03 | danwwo]
s1039e 4 Bunebniyy ss01K) pooyiPy Buiuiep fueg v _n- paENS oy 11S

Page 29




WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

ted by guarantee)

mi

(A company |

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

*SWOOISSe}o 10708} %51 MO|
104 91eWd Yum Arages buisnjuo fiptoas 1H Ada wesjol @ wnipa o 9 ¢ BOUSH ‘MAINISAO | 1S
palapisuoo bulag padnpai sey uoda)
wowebebua 1030e)u00 papuakl | 10iap smoys 110da) 1sae 1H vss aesdjol @ ) 8 4 ¢ uonen(ea [enuuy
¢uonebniw Gumoyjoy e1djo A0 uaye) bulaquonse
pa0npaI Usaq LR ey i Guyuie)y Ino |jos O aNUNUOY 1H v¥ss 10130 | @ 1 o g 2 &1 6uiaq uon
Sbunasw
515090 W13} 6uo| busnpal Jo sounLwon fajes
sfiem 104 Buoo) fijpueisuoo 1H vss aesdjoy) @ wnipay o ¥ ¢ pUE YiEaH 1€ FiEnGas
(e SouEUAUIEN pamainal swwelboiy
o“.ow._.“.v“MM_”H M”N_o“”_m fiuedwos jeusaiss
y oeqpa
s10108 4 Bunebilx "sainpasold fiybuuo 4 1H Hep ae1dj0) @ Ao ol [ 2 woy ,_Am“__wowh
buipsenbages 91 buimojjoy fuBiuNo:
j0U ‘b’ 'vonajdwoo spaapy R4DILIOY 175
paisanbal yoeqpaay
pamalnat aq o1 - JLILIIEL Ie|nbay 'sapms
WO IS UO SI010ENU07) 1H vSs fesajo) @ il i € € pue 3je1s woyy
SIUBWIWIOD SANISO
pauaybn paisy] suonoe
puUe pamaIAal SUISIUCYISW IH ¥Ss FL2TTg @ wnpapd b3 g F4 Gunebniu g paionuous
Bunoyuow pue bunspig fjasoo butaq 396png
froyine
N di
JO |9A9] Si U IUaNS pjRCH 118 _n.m._MM ww_ﬂm_o 1 438 9402 1H aedjo) @ wnipaiy 2l ] 4 43s buong
afieyoed alemyjos mau pasodold .
Ruoying —aoel@ |
¢ ainpasoud
4O |93] S| USYIU3NIS PNOH unop xoﬂﬂ aonpoig 902 1H wy wnipaap a 9 2 u) fipealje sjpnuod
abeyoed alemyjos mau pasodold 40 18qWnu Jeoybig
Sah19531J0 98] 341 01 3np ANURUOT SUONEBIVOSSE
6 da1 bujob
yoam yora pawiojiad s yse1 S| 15100 pue 3jQ ik 1H vSss 21e13j0L % wnipapy o 9 z unioda) buiobug
suonesanuos pue Bufiggoy
: reiy 18a3) NG NIE
b -~ -~ rs -~ -~ -~ -~ -~
Sa10N U.o_.cu 21ming pauueld .P_M M....”S_ —~.-HAB13G I-wa.a_e i1iea] |—o unopydn l...m,m— ybiy +g2) | —l100g | —.seduy 4.‘..._.1__0_.5 |_ ”M._oah“.:mMM
N 1LISILH Saoly 13037 ¥SIH ¥sid 12N

Page 30



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

SUONEN10U0031UN0J0E
sun usuified pue siapio oAU O SSeUNIdWOo 9B q ME[D [BI9UBU] O : W
o buyoays supnos ‘Gudwes 1on ] 13 Horq el fel 4o 18w |
WOPUL! 'SUOENIOUD3! 9 1 pue fiajod soueuy fbupes| juawaalby buipun4| ase suoneinbal jeloueuly jo | aouedwo vsSS
i 31 40]|04 O) unjiey Buifiynuap! 01 fijdwos 03 ainjie 4 | sjaa3] payoadza jeyy ainsuz
1UNOJ9E j0NUO3 fiiiuoly APRE [UIRNNRUISR
51D UOISUS]
'Sy0e)U00'uoN23301d . i
paresoje sabus|eyo eep 'syybu sepuniioddo ,
8 2 . {enba bupiayjo sisfiojdwa | (euonessdg iH gy
siyy 103 Rqisuodsas 118 auno fiue 1o0yuo|y UBWNY 'UORBUIWIIOSIP el ose sinsu
- Suawalinbas ey 218 4/ 3
anne|siba) 19aw o) Suye 4 |
118 buons eafisgggul I35 U sdeg) suielbor 910 Aﬁ
. : Bujuien pue esieidde i {euoneradg
fiq paaroddns ‘siyy uo snaoy 8 b4 fijgea uswynIoal uo sedwi A0aJjaU| UALNINIGS) pUE InOge] annanpoid Jualolye .mI 1H ag ]
ayf10ads yiim Y [eudy| pue 100d UONUAN3I HBIS co._EBm._ s00d .o_m.oE %07 pajys fiiybyy uieyuielay
‘buuies] “paysiqnd pue K 3] S19qUSW SAlSSEH S1ueWannbe 1
palojuow aguepuany pne SUONNGINUOD O\ WUISUOD ‘3guBRpUS Y "SPIaY muom dva .ooc,.__ i
SIS PUB 30U313431 JO SWI) 8 2 noyis souepuany bunjew |  siys vl sdex) 3jqira} 10U o1 s0eid u .hm Wo.._aEw:Om 30UBUIINOY) 3]0 ay
JO MAIN3J |enuuy ‘sepuabe ap Jeajour) ‘pasejoap | asuaiayal jo suna] Yibus) 1 8oejd u ”
40 sj3a3) 1saybiy sy) ainsu3z
UO pue S535a191ul JO 1335169y 10U }53193UI JO SVIYUOD SWie Je JOU SIcUIsR0Y |
SINOUE3WapsiW 10)
wasedsuey) filan a1 'a|qe(ieae SOINULILIO T LOKSE 4O 5]9A3] W21SISUOD SplepuRIS |euoneindas
8 2 gy o fijjeonews)shs pue INOIARYaq JO S}aA3)] fioyjod 0) Inoineyaq § NP 1 [
fiisea apew saoijod |y : pue sibaiens
1ybnoiq saiijod | paroadia uieyuiew o3 olqnd 215 pue dnd uiRuie|a) :
fiq uaas you voneswebig
7O YOC||DUIpAOISISNO
uo|sua) * P313440 SANANOEYSISINOD
sa21s dnoib 03 buipiosse K 0) Spea} 10 WNjNoUING
: : ol 2 'SaNss| )eW)|d ‘sanss| - j0 abuerayy104| (euonersdp vss an 1
SWO0I Sae00]|e 19]qeauwt | . 3L} JO SPaau 3|y} 13aW Jou 1
|einoineyaq ‘buipmoistang S[qeINS 316 SaNI0.Y INSUT 1
$30p UONEPOLIODIE 3y} ]
UoNISOQ
136pnq seafi g Jo M3lnal 1580910j 9501 #0[3q ||12J | u9y3p & Olul jooyos Buiyeyr 1seo3s04136png o) paubye fhipgers 1
1SNQOJ UYENSpUN Sey 19S a4 ¢ J4(] 3Y) WO S|3A3) SWOOU| | PISN UONBWIOJUI 10O | sulewsas awosul ansuz | [eroueulq vsS 4 [
0} 3Np PaILISIZA0 JWOJY|
3DPNG Ul 5[9na| 1
13beueln] a1s 1a11enb yoea payoadka 13DPNq Ut S1oAg| 15aul 15€05101 190pNq U fiqers ]
fiq manay fjyiuolsy a4 ¢ uey) 1amo) ate sydisssy ©1 51i2J SUIOUI PIEI31 5]3A3) S133LI SLIOIUI POIEI2) |eloueuly vSS 4 |
378s : : f613ug usaly 1By ysiy fibrau3g usaig ainsuz : ’ 1
- |E19UEUl) 518INJJE SINSUI I
WaWaoe|dal 0] #aln € Yim anpavoid buryoayo abus|jeyo 0y buipes : i |
A 03 S10URACY) pUE | 1S swayshs
S3NSS] PUB SIEMIYOS JUSLND bl b4 15nqoJ ybnouys 1y6y) 01 J'uonewrojul oaliooy) Buisn ‘s1apjoyayers 196pnq o3|  jeroueury vss 4 1
] apew suols ; ;
JO M31131 INO PalIIeD PSS Bujwos uoneWIO ! 1931100V pi UDISIAP 1BYL YSIY UOREWIOMNI 1991100 PIAGI] !
‘g1 93 buiuien buipienbayes . uomsod sjgessuina suapms |
pa13jdwos YN sul3u09 bunscdat yjerg ‘usdo ||e 104 Buipsenbajes 4019 |
. 2 2 i © Ui plIY2 e 3aes| pue jeuonesadg 3
|enueisqns pue snosobn UlRWa! S3SED §O 13QUINRY O spiepues payoadis : PHINAS |
$|030301d 40|04 OY Ainjie 4 ) ]
buuien buipienbajeg 3y uiewteln] ‘buipsenbajeg i
i
| vy ISt = 3
Jl) [suondy 1~ 1035 N uloyiuopy bunsizy] |_ ann2alqp
-e~J€ sjonuo] bunsizy) |—ys1y S103e21pUj} sysiy L__1o0bajen INuuWo
uejd stbazeng ]
s1030e 4 Bunebipy ssoig poogiagny buiuien fpey i

Page 31




WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

ted by guarantee)

imi

(A company |

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

ypne [eusara uoddns 0y

supne

aoed u awibas ypne [eulay) 1H vss Siervjol AW. il 9 € ¢ JeU123%3 pUE [BUIAY|
fisuabin jo tenewre

se fojog fenbgmomey | 2309 1H aerejoL & a0q 8 b z 212 O) sabuafieyo opy

Siyt Jo uonedlpul

9400 IH .ol & a0y 8 ¥ 2 ou aaib sanwwoo

gy o1 suodal sejnbay
"Sp1005] DUIEN |

S10UIAO pue asuepuaye

e 9 aesajoyg @ a0l ) ¢ 2 'S3pNE S||IYS

joleq 130Ua1J31 JO SWIAN

!s)s8193u) §o 1a1sibay

oo 5S3USAN09YJS

: 9409 IH aesaoyg & no 8 " z 10§ pananal

a9n3e.d oy fiajod fijiejnfay

fipeinbal saivyog

6uipunj gg| uondas 115 'QOH 0153nss)

woy pling #au 104 Moyine 5402 1H 2e1910) @ A0 8 14 2 wuodai o) fiyumioddo

|E90) Yitk SUOISSNISIQ 3y aneysioiny

S|O0Y0S Sour]
011e101§3UaQ 34 [jit BINUIO, @ snILO]
paisedaid 6ulaq (esodoid Bupuny jeuoreu oy S15366nS 9409 IH LT winipapy [ [ € mc_u_aw_w”_”“wu__m.u“m“ _o.».
¥'3 WOy uoneWwIo) !

soe[dul]

pauued 1H vss w*éy @ wnipap 0z [ ¥ suonejoadsa ansyeal

sbupsaw mamal senfisy

#31A31196pNq 19)Yy

fiemiapun maina s @ AO o g 2 syiodal ypne

p 1oy 1H vss wary 3| | pue yosRasa1 19%ie L

uuie N buipienbsjes

paiddwod

JXi NP pue

(2) 019 ‘ssaquinu payoajje Jou | asue SaSEO UBYM SOVIMAIN 40 ADH Yus sasiel] oy
sey 11 pue 34 uj0u saop fipuaiino pue (Oy 1) uojsuie 1H 1GIHANAS . qesdjo) AW_ wnipaw b1 [ F4 TAIDN Wl S198W
2 °yB1Y S\ YU YSiYY ss0IY 211ej] Y sbunaalay 1030UIPIO-0T YL
95101983 UoneIspow

19npuo? o) fijsejnbas

150 Wik s193W peaH

5 o1y [CL] A N-iunpay  [je0)
sa10N Z_bnoe aimny pauvery .»LMM.._” Wi nseg h,wa.a_oh..ao.» -} wnopidn |5 ch 46t <oe) | ~hoos | beduy [ byyoyn| ] T somas
- ILISILH saouy 19a37 ¥SIY ASIH 19N

Page 32



.

WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Fundraising

The academy does not engage any commercial fundraising organisations but supports the Friends of William
Farr with their fundraising for the academy.

Plans for future periods

Plans for future period (2020-21)

The Government closed the academy from March until September 2020 following the outbreak of Covid-19. The
Governing Body have agreed that the strategic priority and objectives (tactical drivers) set for 2019-20 will be
carried over to 2020-21 to allow them to be fully completed. There will be one additional tactical driver for
2020/21: '

To provide full-time, high quality education and support for students following the period of school closure due to
COVID-19 ,

School vision

To provide all members of the school community with the opportunities to engage with 'life in all its fullness'
(John 10:10) through the highest quality of education, encouragement and endeavour. We are committed to
striving for excellence and ensuring that all students are known, valued and can achieve.

Strategic priorities

. To deliver an exceptional climate for learning for the whole school community

. To ensure that every child matters and achieves their full academic potential.

Page 33



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

Tactical drivers (to deliver strategic priorities based on academy self-evaluation, quality assurance reviews,
exam analysis and staff feedback)

. Provide full-time, high quality education and support for students following the period of academy
closure due to COVID-19 (new target for 2020/21)
. Improve student attitudes to learning to create more independent, resilient Iearners ready for next steps

by focusing on literacy and sixth form provision. Data shows Behaviour for Learning was negative P8 in
Year 11 for 2019 (-0.55 across 25 students), -0.25 in 2020 (23 students) and predicted to be -0.62 in 2021
(12 students)

. Enhance our sixth form provision — focus on quality of teaching, student experiences, entry requirements,
target setting, curriculum offer and successful outcomes. Data shows L3VA was negative in 2019 (-0.26),
positive in 2020 (+0.04 using teacher assessment) and predicted to be -0.25 in 2021

. Improve the outcomes of ALL Current SEND pupils. Data shows negative P8 in Year 11 for 2019 (-0.26
across 23 students: 4 with EHCPs (SEN E), 19 with SEN K (Support), -0.06 in 2020 (16 students, 4 with
EHCPs, 12 with SEN Support) and predicted to be -0.11 in 2021 (17 students, 1 with an EHCP, 16 with
SEN Support). Also continue to carefully monitor students who have previously been SEND, or who are
likely to become SEND '

. Improve the progress of boys at GCSE compared to girls. Data shows Year 11 boys (P8 +0.23 in 2018,
+0.54 in 2020, predicted +0.33 in 2021) perform less well in progress than girls (P8 +0.71 in 2019, +1.03
in 2020, predicted +0.56 in 2021). Gap is narrowing

. Be ‘Ofsted Ready’ for possible monitoring visit (from September — December 2020), inspection (from
January 2021). SEF/QA/SDP, communication/CPD: Quality of Education, Behaviour and Attitudes,
Personal Development, Leadership and Management, Sixth Form, Overall Effectiveness

. Improve communication with staff so they have a better understanding of how their roles support the
academy’s strategic direction

. Obtain value for money when allocating financial resources

. Widen the academy’s influence on the provision for mental health by extending the work currently

undertaken (SIAMS target)
Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The academy holds a small amount of 16-19 bursary funding on behalf of students, as recorded in the notes to
the accounts.

Disclosure of information to auditors

In so far as the trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

agorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
3 November 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

The Trustees' repor’( j

company dlrector

Mark Garthwaite
(Chair of Trustees)
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that William Farr Church of England
Comprehensive School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. We do this
through focus on the three key functions of Governance:

. Overseeing the financial performance of the academy and making sure its money is well spent;

. Holding the Headteacher to account for the educational performance of the school and its pupils;
. Ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction.

However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk to failure to achieve business

.— --———-0bjectives and-can-only-provide reasonable and-not-absolute assurance against thatérial misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees for William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School has delegated the day-to-day
responsibility to the Headteacher, Mr Jonathan Knowler, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between William Farr Church of
England Comprehensive School and the Secretary of State for Education. The Headteacher is also responsible
for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met on 9 occasions during the year,
with two additional training events. One of the meetings was arranged to confirm the appointment of the new
Headteacher, and 2 meetings were purposed to examine the risk assessment and plans for the prolonged
closure and partial reopening of the academy due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.

During the closure, meetiﬁgs continued to be held through virtual means.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee : Meetings attended Out of a possible

Helen Brittain 7
Marcus Brittain
Nicholas Chambers
Dawn Cooper

Mark Garthwaite
David Grant

lan Green
Benjamin Hazzledine
Jeffrey Heskins
Simon Hinton
Helen Jenkin

Nigel Johnson
Jonathan Knowler
Paul Merrell

Abigail Parish
Claire Salton

Tim Smith

Shaun Stevenson
David Subden
Adam Watson
Pamela Watson
Daryl Wicks-Randy

S ONOWWNONOOP,PN_20OOP,NOPL,ONN
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In terms of routine committees, Resources (including Finance) met 5 times with one further meeting to train new
governors. Ethos and Relationships met twice and Quality of Education met once. These differences are due to
the closure of the school during the Covid19 pandemic. Standing committees, by their nature, met less frequently
with the Admissions Committee the only one to meet, and that met twice.

A committee of trustees, and external advisors was also created to recruit a new Headteacher for the school.
This year has been one of the most challenging in recent years for the trustees:

The Board has been led by a new Chair, following the retirement of his predecessor. The Board has provided
excellent support for the Chair during this time, and has taken on board new approaches to procedures, in terms
of openness and sharing of information. These have been increased during this period, and to good effect.

The early part of the year saw the recruitment process for a new Headteacher. From a good list of applicants 3
candidates were selected for the two-day assessment process, one internal and two external. Two (one internal,
one external) were then invited to the second day, with the internal candidate, Mr Jonathan Knowler ultimately
proving successful. It is worthy of note that all 3 candidates gave an excellent impression of themselves, and it is
to Mr Knowler's credit that he was successful given the quality and experience of the other candidates.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The start of the year also saw the continuation of previously reported need for close scrutiny and monitoring of
the School's financial position. This has involved continued close cooperation with the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) who have continued to work with the school in terms of long term financial planning.

The new School Business Leader who was appointed at the end of the 2018-2019 school year, supported by the
entire Senior Leadership Team, has proved hugely successful in moving the academy to a much more regulatory
compliant, positive and sustainable position for the academy’s finances.

Certainly, the most difficult aspect of the year was brought about due to the Covid-19 pandemic. That being said,
and despite his short time in office, the Headteacher has led the school through these difficult times in an
exemplary manner. When the school was closed during the ‘lockdown phase’, clear written expectations were
made of both staff and students, and these were part of exceptional communications with parents and guardians
who have praised the way in which they were kept updated, and the teaching which the school provided through
its virtual learning environment. Contact was maintained with students through their form teachers and Heads of
Year, as well as through class teachers and support staff where necessary. As time progressed, the school also
adapted its use of technology and thereby increased its ability for ‘on-line’ lessons where staff were able to
deliver lessons to students in real time.

When the requirement to allow yeérs 10 and 12 back into school was made, the entire staff and the Board of
Trustees, supported the risk assessment and risk mitigation needed to ensure as full a return of these students
as possible. In this way, students in these years were enabled to receive 2 full days of face-to-face classroom
teaching per week, which will no doubt prove invaluable as they move through the next year and their GCSE and
- A Level examinations.

In common with schools nationally, the academy was impacted by the issue around the non-sitting of exams,
and the subsequent confusion around awarded grades.

A robust, objective process was put-in place to manage the Centre Assessed Grades, whereby every single child
was discussed at class teacher, Head of Department, Head of Year and Senior Leadership Team level to ensure
fairness, and accuracy of results, and maintaining levels of academic achievement seen in previous years. This
meant that once again, students of William Farr achieved the grades they deserved for their efforts and
advancement throughout their school career. The vast majority of year 13 students went on to study at their
chosen Higher Education course and University.

Due to the nature of the assessments and awards this year, results for the 2020 cohort are not comparable with
previous results.

Results for the 2020 cohort are, however, amongst the highest in the school’s history for attainment and are the
best according to our estimates of progress.

New strategic principles and priorities were set at the start of the 2019-2020 year, under a revised Senior
Leadership structure, with a keen eye on the change to the inspection criteria under the new Ofsted framework.
These have proved to be robust and appropriate, and the majority will be rolled onwards through the next year,
with a further priority in relation to post-Covid return to ‘normality’ also added. These priorities are set under our
existing vision and values which continue to be felt to be relevant and appropriate by the trustees.

The trustees continue to support a broad and balanced curriculum, offering a wide range of subjects to study, at
both GCSE and A Level, again ensuring that the school vision is paramount. Prior to the Covid outbreak, the
academy also continued to provide an extraordinary range of extra-curricular activities. School concerts and
performances, art shows, school, district, and indeed national sporting involvement and many other events ably
demonstrate the breadth of opportunities offered and accepted by the student body. These events also exhibit
the incredible levels of talent across many fields which are exemplified by students at the academy. It is
anticipated that once a new post-Covid normality is achieved, these activities will recommence at the same level.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)

The trustees would like to thank Mr Timothy Smith and Mr Shaun Stevenson who have both stood down as
trustees at the end of their terms during this academic year. They have both provided many years of support for
the academy as trustees. Thanks are also given to Mr Daryl Wicks-Randy who also stood down at the end of his
first term of office. He is thanked for his support during his term in office.

During this year, following an audit of skills within the Board of Trustees, gaps were identified in terms of school
finance, financial and legal knowledge. A recruitment campaign was mounted to gain new trustees with such
knowledge and, as a result 4 Parent Governors and 1 Member Governor were appointed who between them
bring knowledge of Human Resources, Finance, School Finance, Business and Education, Academia to the
Board. These are welcome and needed trustees and skills, and are already proving their worth as part of the
Board.

Trustees have continued to benefit from ‘Gold’ Membership of the National Governance Association (NGA). The
facility for legal advice has been used to positive effect throughout the year and the incoming Chair of Governors
has also successfully completed the NGA Chair training to ensure good continuity of leadership moving
forwards, and that current best practice can be brought to the trustees.

The trustees also continue to benefit from excellent service from their professional Clerk and Company
Secretary.

The trustees reviewed performance against strategy in June 2019 before reviewing and resetting priorities for the
last academic year. This was done earlier than in previous years to enable the new Senior Leadership Team to
introduce them to the school early in the academic year, giving clearer focus and direction. The review includes
both internal and external data, and also information from visits to the school by trustees, as well as through the
inspection process. '

The Chair of Trustees also attended the first INSET day of the year to address the whole staff in terms of the
trustees’ role in setting direction. The increase in visibility of the trustees is key to the new approaches of the
Board and has proved highly successful in building relationships across the academy which have proved their
worth during the Covid-19 situation.

It is intended that an internal audit in relation to aspects of Governance will be conducted during this next
academic year will be carried out by the newly appointed internal auditors. This will insure compliance with
requirements and enable the Board to be confident in its approach to the key governance functions.

The previously named Finance Committee has now been amalgamated with the HR and Estates Committee and
is now known as the Resources Committee. It is a Committee of the main Board of Trustees.

The purpose of the Resources Committee, in relation to financial matters is:

. To monitor and review expenditure on a regular basis and ensure compliance with its Funding Agreement;
To consider a draft budget based on priorities in the school development plan to present to the Board of
Trustees for adoption;

To establish and monitor procedures for sound budgetary control;

To determine financial delegation;

To respond to any issues arising from the audit of the school’s accounts;

To ensure that financial implications of staffing decisions are identified and budgeted for;

To recommend the appointment of auditors to the Board of Trustees.

e o e o o
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)
Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Helen Brittain 5
Nicholas Chambers
Dawn Cooper
Mark Garthwaite
lan Green
Ben Hazzledine
Simon Hinton
Helen Jenkin
Jonathan Knowler
Paul Merrell
Claire Salton
Tim Smith
Pamela Watson

The committee was joined during the year by a number of governors with financial expertise.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

- GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including- the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by: '

. Salaries are the single highest cost to the academy and staffing levels are constantly reviewed to utilise
spare capacity. Additionally, a new approach to staffing and recruitment was approved and introduced
during late 2019/2020 to support the long term drive to reduce the balance of spend to 80:20
salaries:operational;

. Consistently use a three-quotation process for the supply of goods and services;

. Re-negotiating contracts such as the academy finance system to achieve further savings where possible.

The Board of Trustees is committed to achieving Best Value in all decisions rhade. It uses the principles of Best
Value as they apply to securing continuous improvement in this academy and will:

. Regularly review and evaluate the functions of the school, challenging how and why services are provided
and setting targets and performance indicators for improvement;

. Monitor outcomes and compare performance with similar schools and within the academy;

. Consult appropriate stakeholders before major decisions are made; and,

. Promote fair competition through quotations and tenders to ensure that goods and services are secured in

the most economic, efficient and effective way.

It will strive to ensure that the academy is using its resources effectiveiy to meet the needs of pupils and staff. It
will submit its Best Value statement with the annual budget plan.

The progress of the annual budget plan and the Best Value statement will be monitored with the School
Development Plan in order to determine the extent of continuous improvement.

The academy has in place a strategy and a set of guidelines, updated annually, which will ensure that Best Value
will be reviewed and demonstrated.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Wiliam Farr Church of England
Comprehensive School for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The academy’s system-of internal-financial control is based on a.framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

. Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the trustees;

. Regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

. Setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

. Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

. Delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

. Identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Forester Boyd

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and invited tenders during
November 2019 for the forthcoming internal audits. Forrester Boyd was appointed but plans for two audits were
hampered by the closure during lockdown resulting in one audit carried out remotely during August 2020.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. Purchase card transactions;

. Purchase invoices and orders;

. Review of monthly management accounts;
. Website compliance;

. Review of the risk register.

The report will be considered by the Resources Committee and reported to the Board with an action plan put in
place to rectify any issues found.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

e  the work of the SRMA/ESFA,
the work of the internal auditors;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. Monthly oversight and support from accountants with the chosen finance system adopted by the academy
(E1); ~ ,

. the work of the executive managers within the academy who have responsibility for the development and

maintenance of the internal control framework.

Mark Garthwaijte
. Chair of Truste ACcounting Officer
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School | have considered my
responsibility to notify the academy Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of
material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
academy, under the funding agreement in place between the academy and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook
2019.

| confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA,

.....................................

Pate: 23 November 2020
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are
required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements and,

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. .

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees and signed on its behalf by:
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School (the
'academy') for the year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance
sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

. the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or
. the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. ‘
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report including the Strategic report, and the
. Governance statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the.financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. :

We have nothing to report in this regard. -
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

) the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by-law are not made; or
. we have not received ali the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL {CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we have formed.

“Torc. L. Regsvon

Tara Beeston FCA (Senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of :

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

16 Chequergate
Louth
Lincolnshire
LN110L)

24 November 2020
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO WILLIAM
FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 August 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School during the year 1 September
2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School and ESFA in accordance
with the terms of our engagement letter. Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state to William Farr
Church of England Comprehensive School and ESFA those matters we are required fo state in a report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for
the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Willlam Farr Church of England Comprehensive School's
accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of William Farr Church of England Comprehensive
School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 December 2010 and the
Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and
income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy's income and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO WILLIAM
FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING
AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them,

“Toie L Keosvon

Tara Beeston FCA e _

——

Duncan & Toplis Limited .
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

3

15 Chequergate
Louth
Lincoinshire
LN11 0LJ

Date: 24 November 2020

—— e
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Note
"~ Income from:
Donations and capital
grants ‘
Charitable activities: 4
Funding for the

Academy’s educational
operations

Other trading activities 5
Investments 6

Total income
Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:

Academy trust
educational operations

Total expenditure

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit
pension schemes 26

Net movement in
funds

Reconciliation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

'Total funds carried
forward

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
£ £ £ £ £
- - 29,836 29,836 107,514
252,169 7,910,415 . 8,162,584 7,875,789
350,941 98,558 - 449,499 601,542
2,744 - - 2,744 2,118
605,854 8,008,973 29,836 8,644,663 8,586,963
83,051 14,974 - 98,025 129,840
508,678 8,052,994 © 343,092 8,904,764 8,784,287
591,729 8,067,968 343,092 9,002,789 8,914,127
14,125 (58,995) (313,256) (358,126) (327,164)
- 301,000 - 301,000 (1,096,000}
14,125 242,005 {313,256) {57,126) (1,423,164)
96,339 (3,508,665) 11,045,553 7,633,227 9,056,391
14,125 242,005 (313,256) {57,126) (1,423,164)
110,464 (3,266,660) 10,732,297 7,576,101 7,633,227
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07469546

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

Fixed assets

Tangible assets
Current assets

Stocks
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets / liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets exciuding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the academy
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

13

14
15

16

17

26

18
18

18
18

18
18

2020

£

10,719,265
75,700
204,005
634,052
913,757
(405,921)

507,836

11,227,101

11,227,101

(3,651,000)

7,576,101
10,732,297
384,340
11,116,637

(3,651,000) °
7,465,637
110,464

7,576,101

2019
£
11,034,445
50,405
238,699
417,448
706,552
(506,979)
199,573
11,234,018
(20,791)
11,213,227
(3,580,000)
7,633,227
11,045,553
71,335
11,116,888
(3,580,000)
7,536,888
96,339

7,633,227
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLANb COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07469546

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

The financial statements on pages 50 to 83 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 23

November 2020 and are signed on their behalf, by:
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash prpvided by operating activities 20 232,727 239,094
_ de-‘_Cash flows from investing activities 22 4,668 (42,318)
Cash flows from financing activities 21. (20,791) (20,791)
Change in cash and cash equivaler;ts in the year _ 216,604 175,985
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 417,448 241,463
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23 634,052 417,448

Page 53



WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies

11

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparatibn of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2079 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. '

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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WILLIAM FARR CHURCH OF ENGLAND COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

o Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the ‘Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

e Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income provided to the academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

o Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

¢ Otherincome

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the academy has provided the goods or services.

1.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

 Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

14

1.5

1.6

Expenditure (continued)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. '

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than leasehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of these assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives
on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line or valuation
Furniture and equipment - 20% straight line
Computer equipment - 33% straight line ;

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities. -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Accounting policies (continued)

1.7

1.8

1.9

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

Debtors

Trade and. other debtors are recognised at the settlemént amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a
past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can

‘be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.11 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.12 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Accounting policies (continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they reiate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised .in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
1.14 Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16 - 19 bursary funds from ESFA. The funds
received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in the notes.

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2019
£ £ £
Capital Grants 29,836 29,836 107,514
Total 2019 107,514 107,514
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Funding for the Academy's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020
£ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants _
General Annual Grant (GAG) - - 6,892,101 6,892,101
Teachers Pay and Pension Grant - 385,428 385,428
Pupil Premium ' - 207,245 207,245
Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants ' - 20,887 20,887
- 7,505,661 7,505,661
Other government grants o _
SEN 1-1 Funding - 333,985 333,985
Other Local Authority revenue grants ' - 5,971 5,971
Other government revenue grants - 1,500 1,500
- 341,456 341,456
Other funding
Pupil catering and other income 252,169 8,893 261,062
252,169 8,893 261,062
Exceptional government funding A ’
Other Coronavirus funding - 54,405 54,405
Total 2020 252,169 7,910,415 8,162,584
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

Funding for the Academy's educational operations (continued)

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 6,920,465 6,920,465
Teachers Pay and Pension Grant - 67,711 67,711
Pupil Premium ) - 213,518 213,618
Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants - 15,288 15,288

- 7,216,982 7,216,982
Other government grants

SEN 1-1 Funding - 249,215 249,215
Other Local Authority revenue grants - 8,170 8,170
Other government revenue grants - 3,989 3,989

- 261,374 261,374
Other Funding
Pupil catering and other income 392,033 5,400 397,433

392,033 5,400 397,433

392,033 7,483,756 7,875,789

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from government support
schemes in response to the Coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under
“exceptional government funding”.

The funding received for Coronavirus exceptional support covers £54,405 of exceptional costs. These
costs are included in the expenses notes below as appropriate.
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Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020
£ £ £
Catering income (non pupil) . 53,263 - 53,263
Uniform sales 65,424 - 65,424
School trip income 27,100 - 27,100
Lettings income 4,682 - 4,682
Other income 200,472 98,558 299,030
Total 2020 350,941 98,558 449,499
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
Catering income (non pupil) 39,825 - 39,825
Uniform sales 100,076 - 100,076
School trip income 115,761 - 115,761
Lettings income 8,446 - 8,446
Other income 184,994 . 152,440 337,434
449,102 152,440 601,542
Investment income
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
12020 2020 2019
£ £ - £
Bank account interest 2,744 2,744 2,118
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Expenditure

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs

Funding for the academy trust's educational
operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Total 2020

Expenditure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs

Funding for the academy trust's educational
operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs

Total 2019

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Staff Costs Prémises Other Total

2020 2020 2020 2020

£ £ £ £

6,468 - 91,557 98,025

5,578,855 258,159 599,412 6,436,426

1,574,268 356,593 537,477 2,468,338

7,159,591 614,752 1,228,446 9,002,789

Staff Costs Premises Other Total

2019 2019 2019 2019

£ £ £ £

- - 129,840 129,840

5,946,660 - 252,536 764,632 6,963,828

826,355 411,067 583,037 1,820,459

6,773,015 663,603 1,477,509 8,914,127
Activities

undertaken Support Total

directly costs funds

2020 2020 2020

£ £ £

6,436,426 2,468,338 8,904,764

Funding for the academy trust's educational operations
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation
Educational supplies
Examination fees

Staff development
Educational consultancy
Other costs

Total 2920

Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2019 2019 2019
£ £ £
6,963,828 1,820,459 8,784,287
Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2020 2020 2019
£ £ £
5,578,855 5,578,855 5,946,659
343,092 343,092 338,613
296,520 296,520 436,086
125,463 125,463 138,228
16,187 16,187 14,647
11,375 11,375 13,014
64,934 - 64,934 76,581
6,436,426 6,436,426‘ 6,963,828
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Technology costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Energy costs

Insurance

Security

Transport

Telephone, postage and stationery
Catering

Other costs

Bank interest and charges
Operating leases - other

Auditors' remuneration

Legal fees

Professional fees

Total 2020

During the year ended 31 August 2020, the Academy incurred the following Governance costs:

Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2020 2020 2019

£ £ £
1,574,268 1,574,268 826,356
58,617 58,617 74,809
125,415 125,415 86,094
12,002 12,002 57,692
56,479 56,479 68,165
140,933 140,933 140,841
26,208 26,208 31,462
800 800 2,341
14,768 14,768 13,508
25,953 25,953 76,418
174,074 174,074 162,443
95,372 95,372 92,758
2,111 2,111 3,169
120,211 120,211 119,113
25,315 25,315 47,165
5,301 5,301 5,372
10,511 10,511 12,753
2,468,338 2,468,338 1,820,459

£41,127 (2019 - £65,290) included within the table above in respect of Funding for the academy trust's

educational operations.
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Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2020 2019
£ £
Operating lease rentals 120,211 119,113
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets ' 343,092 338,613
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - (7,200)
Fees paid to auditors for:
- audit o 9,600 15,100
- other services 15,715 32,065
Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
Wages and salaries 5,124,736 5,108,901
Social security costs : 489,943 484,736
Pension costs 1,469,007 1,131,004

7,083,686 6,724,641

Agency staff costs ' 75,905 30,181
Staff restructuring costs - 18,193

7,159,591 6,773,015

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

2020 2019

£ £

Severance payments - 18,193
- 18,193

b. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

There were no non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments in 2020 (2019: One non-
contractual amount of £12,691).
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10.

Staff (continued)
c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.
Management o 1 1
Teaching 93 94
Other staff ’ 97 92
191 187

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:
2020 2019
No. No.
Management 1 1
Teaching 85 87
Other staff . 57 61
143 149

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2019

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 4 4

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 - 1
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 1 -

In the band £110,001 - £120,000 - 1

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the academy was £772,008 (2019 £830,999).
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1.

12,

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2020 2019
: £'000 £000
Jonathan Knowiler, (Appointed as Interim Remuneration 90 -95 Nil
Headteacher and Accounting Officer 1
September 2019)
Pension contributions paid 20-25 Nil
Andrew Stones, (Resigned as Headteacher =~ Remuneration Nil 110- 115
and Accounting Officer 31 August 2019)
. Pension contributions paid Nil 15-20
Helen Brittain, (Staff Trustee) ‘ Remuneration 45 - 50 45 - 50
Pension contributions paid 10-15 5-10
" Marcus Brittain, (Staff Trustee) Remuneration 40 - 45 40 - 45
Pension contributions paid 5-10 Nil
Simon Hinton, (Staff Trustee) Remuneration 30-35 30-35
Pension contributions paid 5-10 5-10

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses totalling £775 were reimbursed or paid directly to 2
trustees (2019 - £345 to 3 trustees) in relation to travel and academy maintenance expenses. At 31st
August 2020 £155 (2019 - Nil) was owed to 1 trustee.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The academy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13.

14,

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2019
Additions

At 31 August 2020

Depreciation
At 1 September 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2020

Net book value

At 31 August 2020

At 31 August 2019

Stocks

Consumables and goods for resale

Long-term Furniture
leasehold and Computer
property equipment equipment Total
£ £ £ £
12,933,850 549,373 590,652 14,073,875
- 9,635 18,277 27,912
12,933,850 559,008 608,929 14,101,787
2,006,968 466,393 566,069 3,039,430
258,159 59,130 25,803 343,092
2,265,127 525,523 591,872 3,382,522
10,668,723 33,485 17,057 10,719,265
10,926,882 82,980 24,583 11,034,445
2020 2019
£ £
75,700 50,405
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15.

16.

Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable

Grants receivable

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2020 2019
£ £

3,259 12,272
7,554 10,886
145,137 132,416
14,899 40,552
33,156 42,573
204,005 238,699
2020 2019

£ £
20,791 20,790
58,057 72,840
120,909 103,842
144,908 17,221
61,256 292,286
405,921 506,979
2020 2019

£ £
98,608 48,291
16,160 98,608
(98,608) (48,291)
16,160 98,608

Deferred income as at 31 August 2020 comprises of school trips due to take place in the year ended 31

August 2021.
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17.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2020 2019
) £ £
Other loans “ - 20,791

The above loan relates to a Salix loan agreement incepted as part of a solar panels project. This loan is
repayable over 7 years in half-yearly instaliments with an interest rate of 0%.
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18.

Statement of funds

Unrestricted
funds

General and
unrestricted
school funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant (GAG)

Other DfE/ESFA
grants

Pupil premium

Other grants -
local authority

Other income
Other grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
asset funds

DfE/ESFA
capital grants
Capital
expenditure from
GAG

Capital
expenditure from
other income

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
96,339 605,854 (591,729) - - 110,464
71,335 6,892,101  (7,303,794) 439,833 - 99,475
- 406,315 (29,760) (385,428) - (8,873)
- 209,245 (209,245) - - -
- 339,957 (3,000) - - 336,957
- 105,450 (150,169) - - - (44,719)
- 55,905 - (54,405) - 1,500
(3,580,000) - (372,000) - 301,000 (3,651,000)
(3,508,665) 8,008,973  (8,067,968) - 301,000 (3,266,660)
587,186 29,836 (23,220) - - 593,802
535,873 - (54,531) - - 481,342
9,922,494 - (265,341) - - 9,657,153
11,045,553 29,836 (343,092) - - 10,732,297
7,536,888 8,038,809 (8,411,060) - 301,000 7,465,637
7,633,227 8,644,663  (9,002,789) - 301,000 7,576,101
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

Other DfE / ESFA Grants comprise of various grants awarded for specific projects, in particular to boost
standards of attainment. Grants include Pupil Premium funding which is intended to support education
from pupils from a disadvantaged background. Grants also include the Teachers Pay and Pension Grant
which is intended to finance the statutory increases in teachers pay and pension.

Local Government Grants includes funding provided for pupils with Statements of Special Educational
Needs and is used by the academy to assist with the pupil's education.

Devolved capital funding is that provided to academies to use as it sees fit in areas such as improvements
to buildings or facilities, or the repair or refurbishment of such.

Other capital grants are provided to the academy based on specific bids for individual projects.

Other income comprises various other receipts including school meals. The income is classed as
restricted or unrestricted based on the nature of the income.

The pension reserve arises from the actuarial measurement of the Academy's share of the Local
Government Pension Scheme deficit. This deficit is recorded as a provision. The. actuarial cost of
employing staff during the year is initially reflected in the normal running costs of the school in the
restricted pension fund. The amount included in resources expended represents the pension cost for the
year charged to income and expenditure that arises from actuarial calculations of service cost rather than
employer contributions paid, and amounts to £372,000. Actuarial gains and losses that arise from
changes in assumptions by the actuary or wider influences are shown in the restricted pension fund, the
movement this year being a net £301,000 actuarial decrease in the net pension fund deficit.

Restricted fixed asset funds represent monies received in respect of and spent on fixed assets. This
includes assets inherited on conversion. The total of resources expended within this fund include the
depreciation charge for the year. The transfers figure is the amount of other funds used to acquire fixed
assets.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.
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18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
~ General and
unrestricted
school funds (14,598) 843,253 (732,316) - - 96,339
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) (19,270) . 6,920,465  (7,098,341) 268,481 - 71,335
Other DfE/ESFA
grants (7,766) 296,517 (51,217) (237,534) - -
Pupil premium - 3,989 (4,237) 248 - -
Other grants -
“local authority - 257,385 - (257,385) - -
School fund - o
restricted .
element 5,373 157,840 " (389,403) 226,190 - -
Pension reserve (2,184,000) - (300,000) - (1,096,000) (3,580,000)
(2,205,663) 7,636,196  (7,843,198) - (1,096,000) (3,508,665)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA
capital grants 521,328 107,514 (41,656) - - 587,186
Capital
expenditure from .
GAG 562,763 - (26,890) - - 535,873
Capital
expenditure from '
other income 10,192,561 - (270,067) - - 9,922,494
11,276,652 107,514 (338,613) - - 11,045,553
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18.

19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at Balance at
1 September : Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2019
£ £ £ £ £ £
Total Restricted
funds 9,070,989 7,743,710  (8,181,811) - (1,096,000) 7,536,888
Total funds M9,~056,391 8,686,963  (8,914,127) - (1,096,000) 7,633,227
Analysis of net assets between funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current period
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 10,719,265 10,719,265
Current assets 110,464 769,470 33,823 913,757
Creditors due within one year - (385,130) (20,791) (405,921)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (3,651,000) - (3,651,000)
Total 110,464  (3,266,660) 10,732,297 7,576,101
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19.

20.

Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Endowment Total
funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - 11,034,445 - 11,034,445
Current assets 96,339 52,690 - 706,552
Creditors due within one year - (20,791) - (506,979)
Creditors due in more than one :
year - (20,791) - (20,791)
Provisions for liabilities and ) .
charges - (3,580,000) - - (3,580,000)
Total 96,339  (3,508,665) 11,045,553 - 7,633,227
Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities
2020 2019
£ £
Net expenditure for the period (as per Statement of financial activities) (358,126) (327,164)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 343,092 338,613
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (29,836) (3,817)
Interest receivable (2,744) (2,118)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 304,000 236,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 68,000 64,000
(Increase)/decrease in stocks (25,295) 70
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 34,694 (65,474)
Decrease in creditors (101,058) (1,016)
Net cash provided by operating activities 232,727 239,094
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21.

22.

23.

24,

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing

Net cash used in financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Debt due within 1 year
Debt due after 1 year

2020 2019

£ £

(20,791) (20,791)
(20,791) (20,791)

2020 2019

£ £

2,744 2,118
(27,912) (48,253)

29,836 3,817
4,668 (42,318)

2020 2019

£ £

634,052 417,448

634,052 417,448

At1

September At 31
2019 Cash flows August 2020

£ £ £
417,448 216,604 634,052
(20,790) (1) (20,791)

(20,791) 20,791 .

375,867 237,394 613,261
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25.

Contingent liabilities

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale of disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government grant was received, the Academy is required to re-invest the proceeds or to
repay to the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal
as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy
serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of state sums determined by reference to:

(a) the value at that time of the Academy's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Academy; and

(b) the extent to which the expenditure mcurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreement.
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26.

Pension commitments

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Lincolnshire County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016. '

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pensior_\ Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the .level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
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26.

Pension commitments (continued)
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £867,746 (2019 - £603,699).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £370,000 (20719 -
£377,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £299,000 (2019 - £305,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 71,000 (2019 - £72,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.4
per cent for employers and 5.5 to 19.2 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to; and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 25 2.7
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.2 2.3
Discount rate for scheme liabilities : . 1.7 1.8

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 214 21.2
Females 23.7 23.5
Retiring in 20 years :
Males 22.4 22.5

Females 25.2 25.2
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26.

Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2020 2019

£000 £000
Discount rate -0.1% 214 223
Salary increase rate +0.1% 19 29
Pension increase rate +0.1% . 191 190
Share of scheme assets
The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

2020 2019

£ £

Equities 4,153,800 4,321,600
Debt instruments ) 1,204,000 947,200
Property 602,000 592,000
Cash and other liquid assets 60,200 59,200
Total market value of assets 6,020,000 5,920,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £109,000 (2019 - £152,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Current service cost : A (603,000) (482,000)
Past service cost - (59,000)
Interest cost (68,000) (64,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities (671,000) (605,000)
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26.

27.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2020 2019
£ £

At 1 September ‘ 9,500,000 7,489,000
Current service cost 603,000 482,000
Interest cost , 177,000 216,000
Employee contributions © 71,000 72,000
Actuarial (gains)/losses (582,000) 1,276,000
Benefits paid (98,000) (94,000)
Past service costs - 59,000
At 31 August . 9,671,000 9,500,000
Past service costs of £Nil (2019: £59,000) arose as a direct result of the McCloud judgement.
Changes in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

At 1 September 5,920,000 5,305,000
Interest income 109,000 152,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains (281,000) 180,000
Employer contributions , ; 299,000 305,000
Employee contributions 71,000 72,000
Benefits paid (98,000) (94,000)
At 31 August v 6,020,000 5,920,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2020 the academy had commltments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2020 2019

£ £

Not later than 1 year 158,352 124,111
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ] 135,760 242,305
294,112 366,416
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28,

29.

30.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

Expenditure - Party Transactions

Mrs J Hazzledine, spouse of a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as an Associate Assistant
Headteacher, a teacher and Head of ICT. Mrs Hazzledine's appointment was made in open competition
and Mr B Hazzledine was not involved in the decision making process regarding appointment. Mrs
Hazzledine is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result
of her relationship to a trustee.

Mrs E Stevenson, spouse of a trustee, is employed by the academy trust as a teacher. Mrs Stevenson's
appointment was made in open competition and Mr S Stevenson was not involved in the decision making
process regarding appointment. Mrs Stevenson is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Mrs K Wicks-Randy, spouse of a trustee, was employed by the academy trust in the kitchen until her
employment ceased on 22 November 2019. Mrs Wicks-Randy's appointment was made in open
competition and Mr D Wicks-Randy was not involved in the decision making process regarding
appointment. Mrs K Wicks-Randy was paid within the normal pay scale for her role and received no
special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee. Mr D Wicks-Randy resigned as a trustee on
22 February 2020.

H.R. Solutions (GB) Limited, a company in which Mr D Subden is a director provided services to the
academy trust during the year totalling £2,537 (2019: £357). The balance outstanding at the year end was
£560 (2019: £Nil). The element above £2,500 has been provided at no more than cost and H.R. Solutions
(GB) Limited has provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16 - 19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the trust received £9,958 (2019: £11,300) and disbursed
£11,404 (2019: £9,030) from the fund. An amount of £9,919 (2019: £11,365) was undistributed at the year
end and is included within creditors.
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WILLIAM FARR

C of E Comprehensive School

Duncan & Toplis Limited
Chartered Accountants
& Statutory Auditors

15 Chequergate

Louth

Lincolnshire, LN11 OU

Dear Sirs

The following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant
knowledge and experience such as | consider necessary in connection with your assurance report on
regularity to William Farr Church of England-Comprehensive School and the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) for the year ended 31 August 2020. These enquiries have included inspection of supporting
documentation where appropriate and are sufficient to satisfy me that | can make each of the following
representations. All representations are made to the best of my knowledge and belief.

General

1

Yours faithfully

Mr J Knowler
Accounting O¥icer

I have fulfilled my responsibilities as accounting officer under the requirements of the funding
agreement between William Farr Church of England Comprehensive and the Secretary of State for
Education and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I acknowledge my personal responsibility to Parliament for the regularity and propriety of the public
finances for which | am answerable; for the keeping of proper accounts; for effective/internal controls;
for prudent and economical administration; for the avoidance of waste and extravagance; for
achieving value for money; and for the efficient and effective use of all the resources in my charge.

I acknowledge my responsibility to notify the governing body and the ESFA of any instances of material |

irregularity or impropriety, or non-compliance with the terms of the academy trust’s funding
agreement and have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020
in performing this duty.

Any instances of material irregularity, impropriety, or non-compliance discovered to date have been
notified to the governing body and the ESFA.

Significant matters of which you should be aware have been brought to your attention including any
instances of irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance with laws and regulations specific to the
academy trust’s authorising framework.

Full and free access has been granted to the all records, correspondence, information and explanations
that you have considered necessary to enable you to perform your work.

William Farr Church of England Comprehensive School, Lincoln Road, Welton, Lincolnshire LN2 3J8

T:01673 866900 F:01673862660 E:wfarr@williamfarrlincs.sch.uk W:www.williamfarrlincs.sch.uk
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